


CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of E
Lighting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “E Lighting”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

E Lighting, a listed company with its business rooted in Hong
Kong and also one of the most established retail chain groups of
lighting and household products in Hong Kong, is committed to
the sustainable development of the environment and the society
and is devoted to social responsibility. During the year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Financial Year”), E Lighting has participating in
several events launched by charitable institutions and has been
honoured a “Caring Company” for six consecutive years. The
Group also awarded the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental
Excellence”, which has fully illustrated the Group’s commitment to
social responsibility, corporate spirit to care for the community and
employee and reached out to the underprivileged.

Moreover, the Group has been participating in the “Fluorescent
Lamp Recycling Programme”, which provides households with free
collection and treatment for all used mercury-containing lamps
to reduce the environmental risk from improper disposal of these
lamps and recover resources.

Despite the extremely challenging business environment, E Lighting
remain resilient to the fast changing operating environment and
continue to apply stringent cost control measures to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In June 2020, the Group has encountered a suitable retail store
in Tsuen Wan with favourable rent and has already finalised the
terms of the tenancy agreement with the landlord. It would be
beneficial to lease the premise as it is located close to one of the
existing retail stores and create synergies with the Group’s existing
retail network. It will also enable the Group to expanse its retail
network at a relatively lower cost, and lay the foundation for future
growth in the long term. The design of the new retail store is
under progress and the launch of the new retail store is expected
to be in mid-July 2020 and will further increase the market share
of the Group.

In the meantime, the Group actively developing smart home and
COVID-19 related products and other international trading and
closely looking for new opportunities for those businesses.
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Looking forward, housing is one of the biggest concerns and need
for Hong Kong citizens and housing is closely related to demand of
lighting and household products. Therefore, the Group is afforded
with new opportunities in its various lines of business. The Group
will adopt more cautious strategies, which will be executed with
prudence and closely control its expenditure in order to maintain
its competitiveness. The Group will strive to maintain a streamlined
business operation, while catering for consumers’ specific needs
and being responsive to market changes. Leveraging the support
of the capital market, its own strengths, and the global trends of
saving energy, protecting the environment and pursuing a higher
quality of life, the Group is cautiously confident of its development
in the future. The Group will strive to maintain steady growth and
to maximise returns for the investors.

Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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Dear Shareholders,

| present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 (the “Financial Year”).

This Financial Year was a year full of challenges to E Lighting.
The weakened global and local economic outlook, the trade
conflicts between the P.R.C. and the United States heightened
the external uncertainties in macro business environment, the
mass demonstrations in Hong Kong, as well as the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic, which affect E Lighting's
performance of each business during the Financial Year.

To address the change in market condition, the Group took
proactive measures to strengthen cost and cash flow control
measures, by reducing staff costs, lowering the inventory level and
working closely with landlords to restructure leases while striving
for rental concessions.

During the Financial Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$69,515,000, representing a decrease of approximately 11.7%
from approximately HK$78,765,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year, which was mainly due to uncertainty in macro
business environment.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$66,522,000, accounted for approximately 95.7% of the
Group's revenue, representing a decrease of approximately 7.7%
from approximately HK$72,083,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the tableware, giftware
and other business was approximately HK$2,993,000, accounted
for approximately 4.3% of the Group’s revenue, representing
a decrease of approximately 55.2% from approximately
HK$6,682,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.

During the Financial Year, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately HK$36,763,000 and recorded a loss of approximately
HK$4,932,000 As at 31 March 2020, the Group's net assets was
approximately HK$16,493,000.
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In view of the COVID-19 heavily weighing on people traffic and
consumption sentiment, the Hong Kong retail market becomes
more uncertain and the business will be affected by the evolvement
of the COVID-19 in the near term, but it is expected that the retail
market may gradually recover in the year of 2020. The Group will
closely monitor the market condition, adjust its product strategies
and strengthen cost and cash flow control measures to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Lastly, | hereby express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders,
investors, business partners, staff and customers on behalf of E
Lighting. In spite of the challenges ahead, E Lighting will step
forward with ambitious entrepreneurship to reward for the
continuous supports from all parties.

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Financial Year”),
there was unprecedented challenges in the business environment.
The weakened global and local economic outlook, the trade
conflicts between the P.R.C. and the United States heightened the
external uncertainties in macro business environment, the mass
demonstrations in Hong Kong, as well as the COVID—19 pandemic,
which affect the Group’s performance of each business during the
Financial Year.

To address the change in market condition, the Group took
proactive measures to strengthen cost and cash flow control
measures, by reducing staff costs, lowering the inventory level and
working closely with landlords to restructure leases while striving
for rental concessions.

The Group remains resilient to the fast changing operating
environment and continue to apply stringent cost control measures
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Retail chain business in lighting and designer label
furniture

Retail chain business in lighting and designer label furniture is
the core business of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Being one of the most established
retail chain groups of lighting products in Hong Kong, E Lighting
possesses rich experience in the sale of quality lighting and
designer label furniture products from all over the world. During
the Financial Year, E Lighting was cautious in its retail network
development due to the sluggish retail environment and has
concentrated on the consolidation of its retail network and
optimisation of the product mix.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$66,522,000, accounted for approximately 95.7% of the
Group's revenue.

Tableware, giftware and other business

Tableware, giftware and other business is mainly for wholesale
of tableware, giftware and other trading worldwide, which has
expanded the Group's business portfolio, and broadened its source
of income and generated additional cash flows. During the Financial
Year, revenue of the business in tableware and giftware was
approximately HK$2,993,000, accounted for approximately 4.3%
of the Group’s revenue.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

With reference to the monthly figures released by the Census and
Statistics Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”), the value of total retail
sales continued to drop for 15 consecutive months from February
2019 to April 2020 over the previous year, the retail sales registered
a significant drop in February 2020 to April 2020, as the COVID—19
pandemic and resulting anti-epidemic measures seriously disrupted
consumption-related activities.

In view of the COVID-19 heavily weighing on people traffic and
consumption sentiment, the Directors foresee that the Hong Kong
retail market becomes more uncertain and the business will be
affected by the evolvement of the COVID-19 in the near term but
the retail market may gradually recover in 2020. The Group will
closely monitor the market condition, adjust its product strategies
and strengthen cost and cash flow control measures to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In June 2020, the Group has encountered a suitable retail store
in Tsuen Wan with favourable rent and has already finalised the
terms of the tenancy agreement with the landlord. It would be
beneficial to lease the premise as it is located close to one of the
existing retail stores and create synergies with the Group’s existing
retail network. It will also enable the Group to expanse its retail
network at a relatively lower cost, and lay the foundation for future
growth in the long term. The design of the new retail store is
under progress and the launch of the new retail store is expected
to be in mid-July 2020 and will further increase the market share
of the Group.

In the meantime, the Group actively developing smart home and
COVID-19 related products and other international trading and
closely looking for new opportunities for those businesses.

The Group will closely monitor the trend of the business
environment and maintain pragmatic approach for its business. The
Group will continue to concentrate on the consolidation of its retail
network, optimisation of product mix and intensification of cost
control, and will also continue to seize opportunities to stabilise
growth through cautious strategic planning.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & 51 5% & O 4T

Looking forward, housing is one of the biggest concerns and need
for Hong Kong citizens and housing is closely related to demand of
lighting and household products. Therefore, the Group is afforded
with new opportunities in its various lines of business. The Group
will adopt more cautious strategies, which will be executed with
prudence and closely control its expenditure in order to maintain
its competitiveness. The Group will strive to maintain a streamlined
business operation, while catering for consumers’ specific needs
and being responsive to market changes. Leveraging the support
of the capital market, its own strengths, and the global trends of
saving energy, protecting the environment and pursuing a higher
quality of life, the Group is cautiously confident of its development
in the future. The Group will strive to maintain steady growth and
to maximise returns for the investors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Financial Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$69,515,000, representing a decrease of approximately 11.7%
from approximately HK$78,765,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year, which was mainly due to uncertainty in Hong Kong
retail environment, macro business environment and the outbreak
of COVID-19.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$66,522,000, representing a decrease of approximately 7.7%
from approximately HK$72,083,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the tableware, giftware and
other business was approximately HK$2,993,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 55.2% from approximately
HK$6,682,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

During the Financial Year, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately HK$36,763,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 13.2% from approximately HK$42,366,000 as
compared with that of the preceding year. The decrease was
primarily due to decrease in sales and gross profit margin. During
the Financial Year, the Group’s overall gross profit margin was
approximately 52.9%.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the Financial Year, the Group's selling and distribution
expenses was approximately HK$25,925,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 10.2% from approximately
HK$28,863,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.
Selling and distribution expenses primarily consists of rentals for
retail outlets and related expenses, staff costs (including salaries
and sales commission to salespersons), electronic payment charges
and depreciation. The decrease was primarily due to decrease in
rental and related expenses for retail outlets and staff costs.

Administrative and Other Expenses

During the Financial Year, the Group’s administrative and other
expenses was approximately HK$13,790,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 17.2% from approximately
HK$16,650,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.
Administrative and other expenses primarily consists of rentals for
office premises and warehousing facilities, staff costs (including
salaries to administrative staff and emoluments to Directors) and
professional expenses. The decrease was primarily due to decrease
in rental and related expenses for office, amortisation of intangible
assets and staff costs.

Loss for the Year
The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$4,932,000 during
the Financial Year (2019: loss of approximately HK$24,247,000).

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

(i) Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 335:

On 6 August 2019, E Lighting Group Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into a
renewal tenancy agreement with Sun Hung Kai Real Estate
Agency Limited as the agent for the owner to renew the
existing tenancy agreement for operation of retail store of
retail business of the Group (“Renewal of Tenancy Agreement
of Shop 335").
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & 51 5% & O 4T

Principal terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 335:
BEBS R HERHEN L ZIRN

Parties: (i) Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited, as agent for the owner; and

R (i) FHEHEREBERARDNUWES/SEZEREA) K

(i)  E Lighting Group Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant.
(i) E Lighting Group Limited (ARG 2 EWE QR - ER/RHEP) -

The agent for the owner is principally engaged in property leasing and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange (stock code: 16). Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited is also the
ultimate owner of the premises.

FIRBAFZREDEEE TRANMBENEZRBRAA RO NERZAAER
EM(RHRE - 16)MNE2EMNBAR - EEHWERERERAFTANERKEERA-

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiries, the agent for the owner, the ultimate owner of the premises and their respective
ultimate beneficial owners are the parties independent of and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons (the “Independent Third Parties”).

NEEEMAMGE UKABMASESH XIRBA DESZKEREAALREZED
BREERBEAANORBYURNARAREBEATERSENEBENAT(BLE=

771 e
Premise: Shop No. 335 on level 3 of 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories,
% Hong Kong.

BEBFR L BB ELK13853E3355 M

Term: Two years from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2021 (both days inclusive).
THE BE-Z-NF+A-BEZ_—FhLA=TH(BEEEMR)RHARE -

The aggregate value Not less than approximately HK$3,467,000, being the monthly basic rental in aggregate
of consideration  for the term of two years (exclusive of rates, air-conditioning and management charges,

payable: promotion levy and all other outgoings).
ERR(ERE: TMER 43,467,000 T - IMFEHEHBASAZAE LB (T EEEZM  ZARER

B OHEEARAEMIH) -

Tenant shall pay the lease payment on monthly basis by internal resources.

BEABZBANNERRZAXNEENE -

The tenant is also subject to monthly additional turnover rental, being an amount by which
15% of the monthly gross receipt(s) of the tenant’s business at the said premises during
and for the rental payable month (without any deduction) exceeds the basic rental.
HETEGNEBARIINEXEHEE ANEFRESENANZVEREEXBMEEA
B A5% (TEEMNB) BHSAEAEEHSRE -

ERFEHEZERERDA 20192068K / 13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% K& 2O 4T

Reasons for and Benefits of Renewal of Tenancy
Agreement of Shop 335:

Due to nature of its retail business in Hong Kong, the
Group has to enter into tenancy agreements for leasing
of retail stores from time to time. The terms of Renewal
of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 335 (including the rental
charge) were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the open market
rent of comparable properties and the rental payment made
by the Group under the existing tenancy agreements. The
Board considers that the terms of the Renewal of Tenancy
Agreement of Shop 335 are on normal commercial terms and
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

Implications under the GEM Listing Rules of Renewal
of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 335:

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, the Company
recognises the value of the right-of-use assets on its
consolidated statement of financial position in connection
with the lease of the premise. Accordingly, Renewal of
Tenancy Agreement of Shop 335 is regarded as acquisition
of asset by the Group for the purpose of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule
19.07 of the GEM Listing Rules) for the lease transaction
contemplated under Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of
Shop 335 exceed 5% but are below 25%, such transaction
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company, and
is subject to reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from Shareholders’ approval requirement.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 September 2019.
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & 51 5% & O 4T

Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308: (i) = &E3085 #H 2 H &1 =&

On 26 September 2019, Culture Art Limited (a wholly-owned RZE-AFAAZ+TRA XBEBERA
subsidiary of the Company) as tenant finalised the renewal AI(ARRIZEWBARIERME ) BB
terms with Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited as the EMEREBAERAA(EERBEAETE
agent for the owner to renew the existing tenancy agreement BEEKR UNEERBHEBRERSE
for operation of retail store of retail business of the Group EETEEXEB2ZEEMH((EHE3085%
(“Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308"). HeHEHRED -

Principal terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308:
BEE308FH ZHE i B -

Parties:
HESPE

Premise:

E

Term:

GERIE

The aggregate value
of consideration
payable:

ERHR(ERE:

(i) Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited, as agent for the owner; and
() FBEEHEREBEARAAUERZEETREA) R

(i) Culture Art Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant.

(il XBEERABDKRRARZEWMBLRRE  ER/EP) -

The agent for the owner is principally engaged in property leasing and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange (stock code: 16). Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited is also the
ultimate owner of the premises.

XFIRBAFZNEDERE TRIEEMEZRAGRLAF (ZRHO VB RZTER
Em(RHRE:16)MNE2EMNBAR - EEHWERRERAFAANERKEERA-

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiries, the agent for the owner, the ultimate owner of the premises and their respective
ultimate beneficial owners are the Independent Third Parties.

NEBEEMAME TR BMEEREENRN FIRBA VERKEBEAREZAN
BRRERBEBEAEORBIE=T -

Shop No. 308 on level 3 of 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong.
BB B E & BR1385R 3123085 M

Two years from 3 November 2019 to 2 November 2021 (both days inclusive).
B NF+-AZAZ-Z2-—F+-AZRHBEEEMRX) REMF -

Not less than approximately HK$2,257,000, being the monthly basic rental in aggregate
for the term of two years (exclusive of rates, air-conditioning and management charges,
promotion levy and all other outgoings).

TR 492,257,000/ 7 - BIMFEHBAABAEARAHSLH(CTIREEZEN  =ARER
E - EEERALHEME)-

Tenant shall pay the lease payment on monthly basis by internal resources.

MPAFZBRNINERZAXNBEENEA -

The tenant is also subject to monthly additional turnover rental, being an amount by which
15% of the monthly gross receipt(s) of the tenant’s business at the said premises during
and for the rental payable month (without any deduction) exceeds the basic rental.
MPNNASNEBAREIINEXERE NHEPREERNANZVEREEBMEEA
BRARS% (NMEEMMB)EBLEERAEREEMNEE -

ERFEHEZERERDA 20192068K / 15
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% K& 2O 4T

Reasons for and Benefits of Renewal of Tenancy
Agreement of Shop 308:

Due to nature of its retail business in Hong Kong, the
Group has to enter into tenancy agreements for leasing of
retail stores from time to time. The terms of Renewal of
Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308 (including the rental charge)
were determined after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties and with reference to the open market rent of
comparable properties and the rental payment made by the
Group under the existing tenancy agreements. The Board
considers that the terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement
of Shop 308 are on normal commercial terms and fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Implications under the GEM Listing Rules of Renewal
of Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308:

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, the Company
recognises the value of the right-of-use assets on its
consolidated statement of financial position in connection
with the lease of the premise. Accordingly, Renewal of
Tenancy Agreement of Shop 308 is regarded as acquisition
of asset by the Group for the purpose of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule
19.07 of the GEM Listing Rules) for the lease transaction
contemplated under Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of
Shop 308 exceed 5% but are below 25%, such transaction
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company, and
is subject to reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from Shareholders’ approval requirement.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 September 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & 51 5% & O 4T

(iii) Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop L5-6 (iii) E%ELS—G%J’%%@Z?HET%&

On 8 June 2020 (after trading hours), Urban Lifestyle Limited RZE_ZEFXANBRSGEREZ)
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant Urban Lifestyle Limited (ANA & & & M /&
finalised the renewal terms with MegaBox Development NE] - BRI F) B MegaBox Development
Company Limited as the landlord to renew the existing Company Limited ({E & % =) & =& 1§
tenancy agreement for operation of retail store of retail FONEBREHERRIEASEET
business of the Group (the “Renewal of Tenancy Agreement TEEBTEEH(EEL-65M oA
of Shop L5-6"). EzEl -

Principal terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop L5-6:
BEEIS-6 T E [ # 6)F ZIF

Parties: (i) MegaBox Development Company Limited, as landlord; and
HESVE () MegaBox Development Company Limited ({fE &% ) : &

(i) Urban Lifestyle Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as tenant.

(i) Urban Lifestyle Limited (AR E 2 BB AGE) - tEAHEF) ©

The landlord is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and principally engaged in property
investment. The landlord is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kerry Properties Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange (stock code: 683).

XX A HREBTMRUNARIRFERENERE XX RAZEERARLAA (X
D REE R PTER BT (RH RS 683)MEEWBE QA -

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiries, the landlord and its respective ultimate beneficial owners are the Independent
Third Parties.

NEREEMAME URBAAEARELSH XITHZANRREGABEABRBILSE

=7
Premise: Unit 6 on Level 5 of MegaBox, Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
ER Kowloon, Hong Kong
JUBE L BE & 7= BR 18 3857 1 % & 5 5 H MegaBox 51£65% 4
Term: Three years from 23 June 2020 to 22 June 2023 (both days inclusive).
THE BE-Z-_TFXAZ+=HZE “EFERAZTZHBEEREMR)RH=F -

The aggregate value Not less than approximately HK$2,640,000, being the monthly basic rental in aggregate
of consideration  for the term of three years (exclusive of rates, air-conditioning and management charges,

payable: promotion levy and all other outgoings).
ERRERE: NMER 42,640,000 7T > BI=FHHAFAELAE AT REEN  ZALER

B OHEEERAREMXEH)-

The tenant shall pay the lease payment on monthly basis by internal resources. The tenant
will enjoy a two months’ rent free period at the beginning of the term.

BMPABZBANBERRAXNEERE BB EHRMEZAERNMEALES -

The tenant is also subject to monthly additional turnover rental, being an amount by which
15% of the monthly gross receipt(s) of the tenant’s business at the Premise during and for
the rental payable month (without any deduction) exceeds the basic rental.
MEMEHNEBAGENEEEH  EPRECENANZYERRBREBMBEA
B AEIS% (TNMEERTIR) BEEAERAEEHNEHE -

ERPFEHEZERERDA 20192068% / 17
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% K& 2O 4T

Reasons for and Benefits of Renewal of Tenancy
Agreement of Shop L5-6:

Due to nature of its retail business in Hong Kong, the Group
has to enter into tenancy agreements for leasing of retail
stores from time to time. It would be beneficial to lease
the premise as it will enable the Group to secure its stable
operation at the premise without incurring additional costs
and expenses in identifying, renovating and relocating to
other retail store and ensure that there will be no disruption
to the operations, business and growth of the Group.

The terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop L5-6
(including the rental charge) were determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the parties and with reference
to the open market rent of comparable properties in the
nearby districts and the rental payment made by the Group
under the existing tenancy agreements. The Board considers
that the terms of Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of Shop
L5-6 were entered into on normal commercial terms, in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

Implications under the GEM Listing Rules of Renewal
of Tenancy Agreement of Shop L5-6:

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, the Company
recognises the value of the right-of-use assets on its
consolidated statement of financial position in connection
with the lease of the premise. Accordingly, Renewal of
Tenancy Agreement of Shop L5-6 is regarded as acquisition
of asset by the Group for the purpose of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule
19.07 of the GEM Listing Rules) for the lease transaction
contemplated under Renewal of Tenancy Agreement of
Shop L5-6 exceed 5% but are below 25%, such transaction
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company, and
is subject to reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from Shareholders’ approval requirement.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 June 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & 51 5% & O 4T

Save as otherwise disclosed, there were neither significant
investments held as at 31 March 2020 nor material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries during the Financial Year.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$7,750,000 (2019: HK$7,107,000). The gearing
ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank borrowings over total
equity, was nil as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil), as the Group
mainly financed the operations from internally generated funds and
had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

The Group closely monitors the cash flow position to ensure that
the Group has sufficient working capital available to fulfill its
operational requirement. The Group takes into account the trade
receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances, administrative
and capital expenditures to prepare cash flow forecast to forecast
the Group's future liquidity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. As at 31
March 2020, there were 451,035,713 ordinary shares in issue.

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$16,493,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$21,425,000).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2020, save as otherwise disclosed, the Group did
not have any material contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% K& 2O 4T

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and Renminbi,
hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. We are mainly
exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of the Euro and Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The Directors
are of the view that the transactional exposure of the Group in
currencies other than the functional currencies is maintained at an
acceptable level.

Charges on Group Assets
As at 31 March 2020, there was no charges on the Group’s assets
(2019: Nil).

Segment Information
The Group’s segmental information is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (2019: Nil).

Dividend
The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Financial Year (2019: Nil).

Employee Information

Total remuneration of the Group for the Financial Year
(including (i) Directors’ emoluments, (ii) salaries to staff and (iii)
MPF contributions) was approximately HK$16,053,000 (2019:
HK$17,592,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 45 employees (2019: 44
employees).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the chairman
of the Board and head of human resources department. Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is responsible for the business development,
operations and business expansion plans and human resources
activities of the Group. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the younger brother
of Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, and Mr. Hui Kwok
Keung Raymond, the executive Director.

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu has over 21 years of business management
experience and obtained a Bachelor of social sciences degree from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, aged 57, was appointed as
an executive Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is one of the founders and chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is
responsible for the business development, operations and devising
market strategy and business expansion plans of the Group. Mr.
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is the younger brother of Mr. Hui Kwok
Wing, the executive Director, and the elder brother of Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu, the executive Director.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond has over 25 years of experience in
lighting and furniture retails business in Hong Kong and obtained
a Bachelor of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1985 and a Master of design degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2015. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the chief creative
officer of the Group and responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the elder brother of Mr. Hui
Kwok Keung Raymond, the executive Director, and Mr. Hue Kwok
Chiu, the executive Director.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing has over 27 years of experience in concept
creation, product design, design management and retail business
management and obtained Bachelor of arts degree in industrial
design from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1989.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE N R EIEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung”), aged 56, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Chung is responsible for providing independent judgement on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor’'s degree (honours) in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and
a Master’s degree in international business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 1998.

Mr. Chung became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom in November 1999.

Mr. Chung has around 30 years of experience in accounting,
taxation and finance. Mr. Chung is currently an independent
non-executive director of Net Pacific Financial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 5QY), the shares of which are listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Mr. Chung was an
independent non-executive director, from June 2015 to October
2016, the company secretary and chief financial officer, from
November 2016 to February 2017, and a non-executive director
from February 2017 to November 2017, of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1355),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Leung Wai Chuen (“Mr. Leung”), aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Leung is responsible for providing independent judgement on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s degree in social sciences from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989, a Master's
degree in business administration jointly awarded by the University
of Wales and the University of Manchester in July 2001 and a
Master’s degree in business (logistics management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University)
in September 2007.

Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) respectively.

Mr. Leung has over 29 years’ experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial matters. He worked
for and held senior positions in various listed companies in Hong
Kong and was responsible for their finance, accounting and
company secretarial functions. Mr. Leung is currently the company
secretary of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1271). Mr. Leung was a non-executive director, from November
2017 to August 2019, of MOS House Group Limited (stock code:
1653), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 55, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 11
September 2014. Ms. Yeung is responsible for providing
independent judgement on the issue of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Yeung obtained a Bachelor of arts degree in retail marketing
with honours from the Manchester Metropolitan University in the
United Kingdom in June 1994. She pursued her further study on
legal course and obtained a Diploma in legal practice from the
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in July
1998.

Ms. Yeung became a qualified solicitor of Hong Kong in December
2000.

Ms. Yeung has over 19 years of experience in legal field in private
practice working with various law firms in Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung
is currently an independent non-executive director of Success
Universe Group Limited (stock code: 487), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung is
currently also an independent non-executive director of Merdeka
Financial Group Limited (formerly known as Merdeka Financial
Services Group Limited) (stock code: 8163), the shares of which
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung was also an
independent non-executive director of Trillion Grand Corporate
Company Limited (stock code: 8103) from March 2016 to October
2017, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen (“Mr. Chou”), aged 57, was an
executive Director from 26 February 2014 to 29 February 2016
and employed as senior business manager on 1 March 2016. Mr.
Chou is one of the founders of the Group and responsible for the
business, operations and marketing affairs of the Group.

Mr. Chou has over 16 years of experience in lighting and furniture
retails business in Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
commerce from McMaster University of Canada in June 1987.

Mr. Wong Peng Lin (“Mr. Wong"), aged 47, is the operation
manager of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 1 December
2003. He is primarily responsible for supervising the day to day
operation of the retail stores in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has over
15 years of experience in lighting retail business in the Group.

Mr. Chang David (“Mr. Chang”), aged 50, is the product &
logistics manager of the Group. Mr. Chang joined the Group on
3 October 2012, he is primarily responsible for overseeing the
product and logistics of the Group. Mr. Chang is also responsible
to oversee compliance with safety requirements of all lighting and
electrical products offered for sale at the retail stores, monitor
the latest development on safety requirements and enhance closer
communications between us and the suppliers in respect of the
safety and certification requirements for lighting and electrical
products in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang has over 23 years of experience
in lighting business in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (“Mr. Lam”), aged 37, is the deputy financial
controller and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam joined the
Group on 27 June 2014, he is primarily responsible for overseeing
the financial and daily secretarial matter of the Group.

Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of business administration (honours)
in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2005 and is a member and fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 2008 and
March 2016 respectively. He has around 14 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, company secretarial and tax consultancy field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and enhance its corporate value. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules (the “CG Code”). To the best knowledge of the Board, the
Company has complied with the code provisions in the CG Code
during the Financial Year.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”).
The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Required
Standard of Dealings and the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company during the Financial Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Wai Man

Leung Wai Chuen

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann
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Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
the overall business plans and strategies of the Group, develop
and implement the corporate governance function, monitor
the implementation of these policies and strategies and the
management of the Company. The Group has an independent
management team, which is led by a team of senior management
with substantial experience and expertise in the Group’s business
and the Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing the Group's policies and strategies.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”). All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

During the Financial Year, six Board meetings and one general
meeting were held in addition to circulation of written resolutions.
Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows:
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H g =
General meeting

BRKE

Board meetings
EFRRH

Executive Directors

HITESE

Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)

FEE(EE)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
2T B oR (77 B 4B &)

Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)
FRR(HEEAEAEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYKHTES

Chung Wai Man

EBE X

Leung Wai Chuen

RER

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann

BRE

11 6/6

11 6/6

11 6/6

11 6/6

11 6/6

11 5/6

According to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the
chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of other
directors. The Company complied with the code provision A.2.7 of
the CG Code that the chairman of the Board held meetings with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term.

Each of the executive Directors namely, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu
and Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from
11 September 2018, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two
years from 11 September 2018, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ written notice served by either party on
the other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the
Articles.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from 19 June 2019, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of article 83 of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to article 84 of the
Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors to
comply with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. Furthermore,
among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung
and Mr. Leung have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received
from each of its independent non-executive Directors the written
confirmation of his/her independence. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers Mr. Chung, Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung
to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the Financial
Year, the role of the chairman of the Board is performed by Mr.
Hue Kwok Chiu and the office of the chief executive officer of
the Company is performed by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. The
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business/
functions, while reserving certain key matters in making strategic
decision for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions to management, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular,
with respect to the circumstances where management need to
report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of
the Company.

Continuing Professional Development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Company has arranged and/or introduced some director’s training
courses and has provided monthly financial highlight, business
update of the Group and training materials for the Directors to
develop and explore their knowledge and skills.

During the Financial Year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers
of the Company that may arise out in the corporate activities which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board on 11 September 2014 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung. The other members are Mr.
Chung and Ms. Yeung. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are mainly to oversee the relationship with the Company’s external
auditor, review the Company’s financial information and oversee
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the consolidated results of the
Group for the Financial Year with the management and is of the
view that such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures had
been made.
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Financial Year:

(@) reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019;

(b)  reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the three months ended 30 June 2019, six months ended
30 September 2019 and nine months ended 31 December
2019;

() reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) approved the remuneration and the appointment and the
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

(e)  reviewed the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; and

(f)  reviewed and ensured that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed regularly by management. With the view of enhancing
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, during
the Financial Year, the Company has engaged an independent
external consulting firm (the “Internal Control Adviser”) to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
recommend actions to improve the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
generally effective and in compliance with the requirements of the
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code for the Financial Year in all
material respects.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chung.
The other members are Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to review and make recommendations to the Board on the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management.
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Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held in addition to B TEHBEA ISR THZESRAPT KT
circulation of written resolutions during the Financial Year. Details ER{TT=Z &% S@ERFIEZES &
of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee & XH BT ¢
meeting are as follows:
Members Attendance
K8 HE &
Chung Wai Man (Chairman) 3/3
EREX(EE)
Leung Wai Chuen 3/3
RER
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 3/3
e

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The remuneration payable to the employees includes salaries and
allowances. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
based on the performance of individual employees and are
reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group
may also provide a discretionary bonus to employees as an
incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of
the remuneration policy with regard to the remuneration package
of the executive Directors is to enable the Group to retain and
motivate the executive Directors by linking his compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.
The executive Directors are entitled to the remuneration packages
including basic salaries and discretionary bonuses.
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The remuneration packages of the Directors were determined by
reference to their experience, duties and responsibilities in the
Company and the prevailing market rate.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by all shareholders by way of written
resolution on 11 September 2014. The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time),
directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group (the “Eligible Participants”) and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

The Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to the
Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The Company believes that by offering the Eligible Participants a
shareholding stake in the Company, the interests of the Eligible
Participants and the Company become aligning and thereby the
Eligible Participants have additional incentives to improve the
Company'’s performance.

All members of the Board agreed to reduce their emoluments by
50% for three months from 1 February 2020 to 30 April 2020 and
reduce their emoluments by 30% for three months from 1 May
2020 to 31 July 2020, as part of cost control measures.
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Senior Management’s Remuneration =R E S
Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the RAMHBEFEE (S HMERE BN F AT &
Financial Year falls within the following band: :
Number of
individuals
ATHEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/% 7T 4
All senior management agreed to have a 24 days no-paid leave ZHEEREEERERA_ZT_ZTF_AZE~A
during February 2020 to June 2020, as part of cost control HEZFFIRR24K - e AR AREZEHEwZ — -

measures.
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Nomination Committee

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on or, as an additional
member of the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to
the Board for consideration and the selection criteria are mainly
based on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience. The Board selects and recommends candidates for
directorship to the shareholders having regards to the balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the Group’s business.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Yeung. The other
members are Mr. Chung and Mr. Leung. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held in addition to
circulation of written resolutions during the Financial Year. Details
of the attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee
meeting are as follows:
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 20 December 2018 to assist the Board in identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors as well as providing the selection
criteria and procedures adopted for making recommendations by
the Nomination Committee. A summary of the selection criteria
and procedures for recommendation and selection of candidates
for directorship is disclosed below.

Selection Criteria
In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the following factors:

(@)  Reputation for integrity;
(b)  Accomplishment, skills and experience in the industry;
relevant

(0 Commitment in respect of available time and
interest; and

(d)  Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualification, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written
consent to be appointed as a Director and to the public disclosure
of their personal data on any documents or the relevant websites
for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as
a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.
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Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons
shall not assume that they have been proposed by the Board to
stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and
to invite nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent
to shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment period
for shareholders to make the nominations. The names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information,
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations,
of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A shareholder can serve a notice to the secretary of the Company
within the lodgement period of its intention to propose a resolution
to elect a certain person as a Director, without the Board’s
recommendation or the Director's nomination, other than those
candidates set out in the shareholder circular. The particulars of
the candidates so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for
information by a supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
secretary of the Company.
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The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the “gross-vote” method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy and aims to set the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(i) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

(i) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the board
diversity policy for the Financial Year.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.
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EO COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Electricity Ordinance (“EO”) compliance committee of the
Company (the “EO Compliance Committee”) was established by
the Board on 11 September 2014. The EO Compliance Committee
currently comprises two executive Directors and one independent
non-executive Director and is chaired by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond. The other members are Mr. Hui Kwok Wing and Mr.
Chung. The primary duties of the EO Compliance Committee
are to oversee and monitor the Group’s compliance of EO and
other relevant regulations through regular meetings and special
meetings.

Four EO Compliance Committee meetings were held during the
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Financial Year. Details of the attendance of the members of the &% ' @ERE N gHLEER
EO Compliance Committee meeting are as follows: HEBmT:
Members Attendance
[54= HE =
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chairman) 4/4
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Hui Kwok Wing 4/4
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Group's consolidated financial statements for each financial year
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of its financial performance and cash flows for that financial
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Financial Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report. The Directors continue
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, BDO
Limited, in respect of their audit services for the Financial Year
amounted to HK$580,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Such risk management and internal control systems are designed
for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalise the risk
management of the Group, build up a standard and effective risk
management system and improve the ability of risk prevention,
so as to ensure the Group is operating in a safety and steady
environment, the operation management level could be increased
and the Group’s operational strategy and target could be achieved.
The current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant
authorities) of risk management and internal control to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems for the Financial
Year.

Possible risks and uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw
material risk, market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial
risk.

Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, especially the Hong Kong retail market, and
also the downturn pressure on the overall economy of the Hong
Kong and other overseas markets. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the business and review of material business
decisions involving material risks exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s foreign exchange risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Board also
reviews monthly performance, capital structure and key operating
data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitors and ensures that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group engages
professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the latest
developments in the regulatory environment, including legal,
financial, environmental and operational developments. The Group
also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any unauthorised use or
dissemination of confidential or inside information.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the business and
operations, relevant internal control procedures have been set up
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. These procedures are monitored and
reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary.
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The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key processes
of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control

processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

The Group has engaged the Internal Control Adviser to carry out
the internal audit functions by performing an annual review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the selected
cycles of the selected subsidiaries for the Financial Year. Such review
is conducted annually. The scope of review of Internal Control
Adviser included revenue and receipt cycle, human resources and
payroll cycle and financial reporting cycle for certain subsidiaries
with principal activities of retail chain business in lighting, designed
label furniture and household products in Hong Kong.
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Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings and areas for
improvement to the Company. All recommendations from Internal
Control Adviser would be followed up closely by the management
of the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Group therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control processes are adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment
and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are inadequate.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems were
generally effective and in compliance with the requirements of
the code provision C.2.1 of CG Code for the Financial Year in all
material respects. The Company has reviewed the effectiveness of
the systems of risk management and internal control of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial and operation for
the Financial Year.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal control element,
a series of disclosure procedures of price sensitive information on
reporting and dissemination of inside information and preservation
of confidentiality. Under the inside information disclosure policy,
head of the accounting department of the Company shall report
to company secretary of the Company and Directors any potential/
suspected inside information event as soon as practicable when
it materialises for determining the nature of developments, and if
required, making disclosure. All staff are also required to observe
the code of ethical standards stated in staff handbook to keep
non-public information confidential.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
The Company values communication with the shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Company uses two-way
communication channels to account to shareholders and investors
for the performance of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from
shareholders may be put to the Board through the following
channels to the executive Directors:

1. By mail to the Company’s principal place of business at 10th
Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong;
or

2. By email at investor@elighting.asia.

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) updating the
key information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders
and investors; and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.
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The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice shall be given. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, or in
their absence, the Directors are available to answer shareholders’
questions on the Group's businesses at the meeting. To comply
with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the management will
ensure the external auditor to attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

All shareholders have statutory rights to call for extraordinary
general meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration
by shareholders. According to article 58 of the Articles, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, he/
she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s
head office located at 10th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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The Notice shall:

(i) include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(i)  be signed by the shareholder concerned and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as
a director of the Company without adjourning the general meeting,
shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the date
of the general meeting appointed for such election.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website (www.elighting.asia) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
20 December 2018. The Dividend Policy aims to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth
opportunities.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group, together with its

subsidiaries;

(c)  the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;
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(d) the Group's liquidity position; d) FTEEHNREBE AN

(e)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s (e) FRELENRR AEEEBNPHERY

business and other internal or external factors that may have AR AR S B 27 - B A M ERLA B
an impact on the business or financial performance and ERENATSIININERE &

position of the Group; and
(f)  other factors that the Board may considered relevant. Hh EZEZRRAREHEMEAE -

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any ZAAXAGERNMNEENZHEHEELEZRARNAE
restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and the Company’s 4% Z 2 40 B 2 (T ][R HIET AR BR ©
articles of association.

Company Secretary NEAIME
Mr. Lam has been appointed as the company secretary of the ARFR-_ZE—MNENE-+HBEZEMELA
Company on 27 June 2014. During the Financial Year, Mr. Lam has R AR ZE - WA B FE » ML EE R IEGEM
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in M BIE5. 15 BT~V R + R/ B2 HE
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. BRI -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
10th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding while the Group
is principally engaged in retail chain business in lighting, designer
label furniture and household products in Hong Kong and wholesale
of tableware, giftware and other trading worldwide. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE RELEVANT LAW AND
REGULATIONS

During the Financial Year, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 26 to 46. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of the long term objectives.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Financial Year
and a discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6, CEO’s
Statement on pages 7 to 8 and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 20 of this annual report.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, in particular the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section under the Corporate
Governance Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Financial Year and the state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 143.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Financial Year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Financial Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into
by the Company during the Financial Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE
As at 31 March 2020, the Company had no distributable reserve
that was for distribution to shareholders.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and business
partners (including suppliers and contractors) are key stakeholders
to the Group’s success. The Group strives to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging its employees, providing quality
products and services to the customers, collaborating with business
partners to deliver quality sustainable products and services and
supporting the community.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Financial Year, the top five customers together
accounted for approximately 4.6% of the Group’s revenue and the
Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 1.2% of the
Group’s revenue.

During the Financial Year, the top five suppliers together accounted
for approximately 46.4% of the Group's purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 13.4% of the Group's
purchases.

During the Financial Year, none of the Directors, their close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company's total number of shares in issue) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Wai Man

Leung Wai Chuen

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann

By virtue of article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chung Wai Man and Mr.
Leung Wai Chuen, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu and
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a fixed term of two years from 11 September 2018, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served
by either party on the other, and is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set
out in the Articles.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from 19 June 2019, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 21 to 25.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings were as
follows:

EERTETHAERARATRE
@ﬁ%%g@%@‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
i ERE R AR

RZE-_ZEF=ZA=+—H ARQRRIEFK*E
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REATEBERNEFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
" & BokEEME HHHBE RESLAESH
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond Interest in controlling corporation 210,000,000 46.56%
B 58 ST A4 REEEER (Note 1)
(Bt aED)
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 9.98%
FFE 8 5 A& EREAA
Note: B 5T

() These shares are held by Time Prestige Ventures Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executives had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Required Standard of Dealings.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, to the best of the knowledge of the
Directors and the Chief Executives and based on the public records
filed on the website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by
the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
& BokEZEME HHHBE KRESLASL
Time Prestige Ventures Limited Beneficial Owner 210,000,000 46.56%

EREAAN
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying (Note 1) Interest of spouse 45,000,000 9.98%
e 38 22+ (MY aE1) (KR ¥
Note: B 5

Q) Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is the spouse of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. Under the SFO,
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person or
corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) who
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to the
Eligible Participants and to promote the success of the business of
the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
11 September 2014 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
to grant options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the
shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the date of the
shares of the Company listed on GEM, being 40,000,000 shares
(or such numbers of shares as shall result from a subdivision or
a consolidation of such 40,000,000 shares from time to time)
(the “Scheme Limit”). Subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of the
approval by the shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant
options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. No options shall be granted
under any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue. Any further grant of options is subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option
at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

As at 31 March 2020, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 8.87% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no share
option has been granted by the Company.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Financial Year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and the Chief
Executives (including their spouses and children under 18 vyears
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares, or
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Financial Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Save as otherwise disclosed, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Financial Year or at any time during
the Financial Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director, is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Financial Year, which provides appropriate
cover for the Directors.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Financial Year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
and the company through which he holds equity interests in
the Company, namely, Time Prestige Ventures Limited, have
entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company on
11 September 2014. The details of the deed of non-competition
have been disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
September 2014.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed the Company that they
had complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
Financial Year. The Board (including the independent non-executive
Directors) has reviewed and confirmed the compliance with the
non-competition undertakings by the controlling shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS
As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year did not
constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There are no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the Financial Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31
March 2020 are set out in note 4(m)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONFIRMATION INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered that all the independent
non-executive Directors were independent during the Financial Year.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

After the completion of the engagement of Ample Capital Limited
as the compliance adviser of the Company in compliance with Rule
6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules on 30 June 2017, the Company
did not have compliance adviser.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Group is committed to the sustainable development of
the environment and the society. The Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental policies to ensure
its projects meet the required standards and ethics in respect of
environmental protection.

The Group aims to capture the flourishing LED market, by
monitoring the latest development of policies for LED products and
providing customers with more eco-friendly and cost-effective LED
products. The Group has also assembled the product portfolio in
order that the majority of the lighting appliance products to be
LED compatible, and the Group has designated several of existing
retail shops as LED specialty stores which primarily showcase LED
lighting appliance products.

Moreover, the Group has been participating in the “Fluorescent
Lamp Recycling Programme”, which provides households with free
collection and treatment for all used mercury-containing lamps
to reduce the environmental risk from improper disposal of these
lamps and recover resources.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any material
subsequent event after the reporting period and up to the date of
this annual report.

56 \_ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

B MEER

BIEGEM T B 5£5.0916 - AR T2 W B &
BYERPTESHH B IURRERRARAE
VREEMBEBYERNTESTAB Y -

SRERER

R+ #XA=tARKARADRIEGEM
ETHRBIECAIMGERLYRBATRAAAA
MEMZE  AARLEA AR -

RIREH

AEBAOKBERRELHENAFEER - £
SEBNETERRROAZER  THRAH
MHRRERR - BAREBEENARRAD BT

BRERIET -

AEENERRELELNAZEERZEDHLED
Mm% BEEEERAHBLDBRNRFHERLR
EFREESRARMAKARBEHNLEDE M °
AEBCEAERMES  WEKRENHRAEES
EmAELIEDAE MAKENESEES TR
ETEEMALEDEME - TERFLEDRAE
BREM e

SN REBFESMMBERE R E LU
2 ARERBOKAEE SRS KRNHEE
EUARALATEREEREEMSRNIRE
BES  MAIER BB HEBEREE -

BEMEBEE
BERRESN HEAFRE  FAEBEY BT
DEPN T L E



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out in the financial summary on page 144 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year have
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M 1% BUAD &

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEE - +852 2218 8288 EHTER11158
{88 : +852 2815 2239 KL HI>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of e Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 143, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

(Refer to Note 15 Property, Plant and Equipment and Note 16
Right-Of-Use Assets and Note 5 Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty)

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of the Group as at 31 March 2020 was approximately
HK$420,000 and HK$9,566,000 respectively.

Two retail shops (cash generating units (“CGUs"”)) had reported
continued losses in the current year. Management considered this
as an impairment indicator on the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets and has performed an impairment
assessment on these assets as at 31 March 2020 to determine the
recoverable amount using value-in-use calculation.

Based on the result of management’'s assessment, impairment
loss for the year of approximately HK$54,000 and HK$1,707,000
were recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively to their
recoverable amounts.

Because of the significance of the balance, the existence of
impairment indicators and the determination of recoverable amount
of these assets, using value-in-use calculation, require significant
judgements and estimates by the management about the future
results of the related business and the discount rate applied to the
cash flow forecast, we have identified this matter as a key audit
matter.
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Our response:

= tested management’s assessment as to which groups of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets have
indicators of impairment, together with management’s
grouping of such assets in the relevant CGUs;

= for those CGUs that included property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets with impairment indicators, tested
the relevant discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by
management, including:

- assessed the reasonableness of key input data in the
cash flow forecasts by comparing them with historical
actual information and management’s approved
budget;

- compared the expected revenue growth rates
to relevant market expectations such as industry
information;

- tested the discount rates with reference to our
understanding of the business including the future
business plans of the relevant CGUs, comparisons
to other similar companies and broader market
considerations;

= evaluated the methodologies adopted and checked the
mathematical accuracy of the value in use calculation
used to estimate the recoverable amounts; and

= performed sensitivity analysis on the key input data
and assumptions to the impairment assessment, to
understand the impact of reasonable alternative
assumptions that would have on the estimated
recoverable amounts.
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Impairment assessment of inventories
(Refer to Note 19 Inventories and Note 5 Critical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had inventories of approximately
HK$7,459,000 net of provision of HK$2,045,000, with details
being disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
We had identified inventory valuation as a key audit matter as
impairment on inventories was subject to significant management
judgment and the amount involved was significant.

Our responses:

- Understood and evaluated the Group's provision policy on
inventories and basis of the assessment;

= Reviewed and assessed management’s process of the
identification of obsolete or out-dated inventories and
estimation of the net realisable value of these inventories;

= Evaluated historical accuracy of inventory provisioning by
comparing historical provision made to the loss incurred for
actual sales;

- Reviewed inventory ageing analysis and analysing the level
of aged inventory and their associated provisions;

= Tested the purchase cost, selling price and margins of aged
and obsolete inventories on a sample basis to the source
documents; and

= Reviewed and evaluated net realisable value of inventories,
with reference to subsequent sales information and the
external price data and performed testing on a sample basis,
by tracing to the source documents.

77 8 10 LB 37 1
(AR 45 2 B B BRI 31977 I R 25 B A
BB R TEEEEZ T EXH)

RZEBEZZTF=A=+—8 ' £Mk2,045,000
BILRREREE BES5ENGTEEELNA
7,459,000 7T * A E R RS M IE MR
19 - ZMBEFENFEATSEREXZSIEE
ZRAEBFHIESERRRCELREANE
2 IZ A o

AT B B T ¥ 0

- TRENE EREZGEBERERE
LRI E

- BELFAHEEEIRNREXNBREFE
ZRFEHZEFENERFE M5

- BENBBEHRIBREEBERHEER
R AREBEEEBREZERL:

- BEFERERSN  ASNREFEZF
N E AR R AR

- BBRMEREFEZREBRA  HEER
KA BETHERR &

— RIR G R SRR R (B BB 1T
WIEAE LB EIRIM - ABER
ARER TR FE -

ERPFEEZERERDA 2019206 K / 61




62 \. E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & 3/ 1% £ Bl 3} &

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

64 \. E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

e HEFERAFRELESHERNREMN
EhiEm - RIEFAEDRNWBRE -
ERAFHEEZHARBERABEEBNEART
BEM  AMmAERY EXENRHE
REENELEARE - WEMBLE
HEERTHEN @ BIBREXBEN®RE TR
FEREIRGEMBERRANBER
EoREABKETRE  AIRMEERR
FERBER BANGEREENEE
ZRENRE AR LGB RE -
AW REBEIBERALGEY BEE
BT REFAELE -

s FELFAMBHRRNWERIBIA &
BRAR  BREEE  URESUB®RRK
EERFRBEBEXZRER -

e i EXEREBIEXHKLIHNMBER
ERFR  BENEAERE  UERHES
FmRERER - HMAAE BESE
B - BEBERRT - RMAYFFE
RAEZ AL -

BREMEBERS  RABREEZZESEBTE
MBERE BEXEREAFTERSE 8
R IR ZE 5t R AT R A EBAE BB R R &K
ERFG o

BATABERZEGRIER  FBARMEF
EERMBYMNERERBERER W EMBM
BRAARAEMERARETERMBILEN
FEBERREMEE  AREEANBERT
HHBEEY B #E B o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ¥8 37 4% & Bl 35 &

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong,
24 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CeERREMEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 - F - FF =H=+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
Notes HKS$’ 000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T F&E T
Revenue - 7 69,515 78,765
Cost of sales & KR (32,752) (36,399)
Gross profit E A 36,763 42,366
Other income, gains and losses Emlg A W= K EiE 8 (1,316) (21,538)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRAX (25,925) (28,863)
Administrative and other expenses THREEMAS (13,790) (16,650)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEHNE (694) -
Loss before tax F B4 Bl /&5 18 9 (4,962) (24,685)
Income tax credit TStk 12 30 438
Loss and total comprehensive income for ANAF #EH A JELL EE
the year attributable to EEREZEKZERE
the owners of the Company (4,932) (24,247)
Loss per share BRE#E 13
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EHARREE OB (1.09) (5.38)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

B AR &

n‘/_ﬁ
As at 31 March 2020 R=F=FF=H=+—H
2020 2019
—EF= ﬂi :%_ﬂi
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE& T FE T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 15 420 1,069
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 9,566 =
Intangible assets BEEE 17 - =
Goodwill GRS 18 -
Rental deposits HExRsE 20 2,052 2,806
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBE E 24 240 258
Total non-current assets EREEERE 12,278 4,133
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 19 7,459 10,382
Trade and other receivables JE U 3B & Eo 4t FE U SR IE 20 8,086 7,403
Tax recoverable A Y [ F 18 36 44
Cash and bank balances e RIRI1TES 7,750 7,107
Total current assets mEBEELE 23,331 24,936
Total assets EE#AE 35,609 29,069
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE A~ FR B K E th FE A~ OB 21 6,584 6,055
Contract liabilities EHAaE 22 873 1,409
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 8,195 -
Current tax liabilities BNHAFI IE B E 139 178
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 15,791 7,642
Net current assets RBEEFE 7,540 17,294
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBER 19,818 21,427

ERAKEERAERLA

201920 5% / 67



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IS AR R &R

As at 31 March 2020 R—E_-—ZFF=H=+—H

2020 2019
— ? — ﬂi _j-LE'E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T F&E T

Non-current liabilities knBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 3,325 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 24 - 2
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBELE 3,325 2
Total liabilities BEHEE 19,116 7,644
NET ASSETS EEFE 16,493 21,425

EQUITY B

Share capital [N 25 4,510 4,510
Reserves it 11,983 16,915
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 16,493 21,425

On behalf of the Board
RREEZ

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (&F B 5%)

Director & &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEZEER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 2 —-F - FF = H=+—HIFFZE

Other
Share Share reserve  Accumulated Total
capital premium (note) losses equity
H At 7% 18
(& % 13 )% 18 (B &) RitE#B ExmAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE-—\FNA—H 4,510 67,066 2 (25,906) 45,672
Loss and total comprehensive — FEEER2HE K & A%
income for the year = = = (24,247) (24,247)
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-hF=RA=+—H 4,510 67,066 2 (50,153) 21,425
As at 1 April 2019 RZTE-NENA—H 4,510 67,066 2 (50,153) 21,425
Loss and total comprehensive  FEFHE Rk
income for the year SHN LT = = - (4,932) (4,932)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=A=+—H 4,510 67,066 2 (55,085) 16,493

Note: B 7 -

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the A&EBHEMBEEEAQARDHETRMHEEERER
nominal value of shares issued by the Company and the aggregate nominal —Z—PUF N ANBEXNEBEHATKENHEQ
value of the issued share capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a AIEZEITIRAEELRE 2B ELE -

group reorganisation which became effective on 8 September 2014.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

v/T\ Iﬁ@/)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # %= = Z

E-FE= A=+ —AULFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNERERE
Loss before tax B %% A1 5 18 (4,962) (24,685)
Adjustments for: TN FIEEL AR
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREERE - 19,817
Impairment loss on intangible assets EEEEREERE = 1,877
Impairment loss on property, plant and M- MERZEREREIS
equipment 54 20
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FEREEEREEIS 1,707 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WMEREKEBHITE
equipment 610 585
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 10,765 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEMX WMEREZENEE
equipment 7 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss on  7F & J& {5 /& 18 % & (3] )
inventories 1,207 (99)
Gain on lease modification HEBTH = (4) -
Amortisation of intangible assets | EERH - 1,608
Expected credit losses (reversed)/recognised — FEUW FKIE 2 A Hi{= & & 18
on trade receivables (B1#),/ 1#R (4) 55
Interest income A2 WA (1) Q)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 694 -
Operating cash flows before working EEESBBAZREREN
capital changes 10,073 (823)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,716 2,150
Decrease in trade and other receivables JE W 50 TR e L b B MR T R 75 547
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other JE A5 308 B b B S ZROB IS 0
payables Om ) 529 (1,014)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD), 1 (536) 1,409
Cash generated from operations REMBHNEAS 11,857 2,269
Income tax refund BEiRE A5 15 320
Net cash generated from operating RETHFBREFHE
activities 11,872 2,589
Cash flows from investing activities REREZTHHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWX - BE KX HE (22) (419)
Net cash used in investing activities REFHFMANEESFHE (22) (419)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z&H &R a R
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =F =-FF=H=+—HIFF&E

2020 2019
—E-2F —ZE-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FTHET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities REMEZTHNRERE
Repayment of principal portion of the (EEHEAE 2 EANIHD 31
lease liabilities (10,514) -
Interest paid BT F & 31 (694) -
Interest received 2 WF & 1 1
Net cash (used in)/generated from @& EE (FTH), FiBH
financing activities BHEFE (11,207) 1
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEYENFEHE
equivalents 643 2,171
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzHeRESEZEY
beginning of year 7,107 4,936
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEEREEEEY
of year 7,750 7,107
Analysis of the balances of cash RERBEEEYEBRIN
and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances W RRITHE 7,750 7,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

CORPORATE INFORMATION

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited (the
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 29 November 2013 under the Companies Law.
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
of this annual report.

“Company”) was

The Company’'s issued shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange"”) since 29
September 2014 (the “Listing”).

The directors consider the Company’s parent and ultimate parent
is Time Prestige Venture Limited, a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Company's principal activity is investment holding while the
Group is principally engaged in retail chain business in lighting,
designer label furniture and household products in Hong Kong and
wholesale of tableware, giftware and other trading worldwide. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 April 2019
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
for following new/revised HKFRSs and amendments issued
by HKICPA which is relevant to and effective for the Group's

ACE=E
ERPEEEBRERABA(TARRNR-F—
=ET A TNARBHERBERFIEF22
BECAR—FE=RED  BEERERDHE
HEREEMKRLSERRLERAT - AT
ST A% S BT e 2 B B0 B A 3 A B AR A #R
MAREMBOEHEKE -

ARFMEETRNB - Z-NFAA-+NA
EREBEBAEXZAARAR (BT GEM
Em(TEml) e

ESRAEAEEZERARREEERAR A
Time Prestige Venture Limited © — R R K B &
ZHEHE(RBRZHENFAMKLZAR -

ARAMEREH /RERK  MAKEE
EREEREEHRRFIMBERARKE
EmNTEEHEBRILEER Bk HEM
BHEHREM - HEARNEZEB R HM
AEREN G AP RRMEEIS

R M BE B R ELER(F)

B R 528 )

(@) RMAME RETEBHBRE
BA-ZF-NFOA-HBAEXK
RAEE  AEBEEREA TGS
BRI AREML I EETES
MEREEA RS ABEEABRE
A2 ETEARARE SR - NF

financial statements for annual period beginning on 1 April
2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int23 Uncertainty Over Income

Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income Taxes

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases has been
summarised below. The other new or revised HKFRSs that
are effective from 1 April 2019 did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

HKFRS 16 — Leases
(1) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for accounting
for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17"), HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) —
Interpretation 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC) — Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. From
a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases are recognised
in the statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, with the narrow exception
to this principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low value or are determined as short-term leases.
From a lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. For details
of HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a lease,
its impact on the Group’s accounting policies and the
transition method adopted by the Group as allowed
under HKFRS 16, please refer to sections (i) to (iv) of
this note.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and recognised all the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
as at the date of initial application (1 April 2019). The
comparative information presented in 2019 has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.

2.

R RETERBMBRE
2 F-NFHA-BER
(48)
RNBEEMBREENE6HRAEZY
EHAMT - BT -NFHA—AE
2 B T RAEAE AT 2 B BRI 5 R
HRBW mY AR EE Y &R ERE
AEXRHE -

ERMBHEENE16K -HE

() BFRABEBHEHREEREI6TE
&
ERUBREEAEEREE
Stz etRE(EEREAHEA
ZEHRBIR)ERENED -
HBRRKEA S EAF17REE
(BB EEAFI7THR]) BB
(BEHBREREZES) -2
BEAFHELZEELEEEE
FE(EAREZRES) -2EF
ISR EHE - BEREE CEL
REZE®) —REBE2IRABS
EEEEARTEANRSHAE - 5
EEAME  ZFAEHEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)
(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

The following table summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on the consolidated statement
of financial position as of 31 March 2019 to that of 1
April 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)):

BF 75 ok MY =

2 EMERHBREAM(E
B S ¥y 5 4 E'JJ)(%
(a) R KETEEHERE
2B -—FE-hAhENA—B4EX
()
ERUBERELENF165%—HE
(80
()  ERAE BRI EER FE 165
ZES,
T%WL@&:.:??%W?%?&%&E
A1 EHE—_E—NEFE=A=
+—HBE-_ZT-—hAhFENA—HZ%&E
AHMBERRR 2 EGE N, O

o

)
Effect of

At 31 March 2019 adoption of At 1 April 2019

under HKAS 17 HKFRS 16 under HKFRS 16

REFBST REEBHBRE

X E17% RABTEBHB %A #1655

R=Z—h%F & %A R=-Z—-h&F

=BA=1+—H HF16HHNTE MmA—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T IT T IT FHET

Right-of-use assets CRAEEE = 10,849 10,849
Lease liabilities HEARE

- non-current portion —FEMEE D = 3,136 3,136
Lease liabilities HEAR

— current portion k%) = 7,713 7,713

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as
at 31 March 2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities as at the date of initial application (1 April
2019) recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments
to lease liabilities

THHRFBERAT B G HER
BURABEBER _T-—NF=A=
+— B Z &S B AE 0] R 47
BMBMN KR AERR ERER
BH(CE-NAFOA-—HR)ZEE

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

Less: short-term leases for which lease terms end
within 31 March 2020

Less: contract signed but commenced
after 1 April 2019

Add: other adjustments

Less: future interest expenses

BEETYHER:
KeHERERBEERE HK$’000
2 YR THET

—T-NAFE=ZA=+—RAZ
@%m%@w 19,318
BHEHRHR=_Z=_TF=A
—t+-HRAREZRHHE (4,286)
B BRIER=E—hFMNA—H
BHBZERN (4,231)
o E b 3 780
R R A B R ST (732)

Total lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019

R-ZE—AFNA—HZ
HEaERE 10,849

The weighted average of the incremental borrowing
rates applied to lease liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
April 2019 is 4.95% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective

1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

(1ir)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the use
of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, unless the lessee applies the
practical expedient which allows the lessee to elect,
by class of underlying assets, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease
is determined as an operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the operating lease
as an expense over the lease term. The asset under
the lease would not be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the lessee.

2.
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B & & B3 S 2ERI 1655
HEAER —MWEHNIEHNZ—
o BRAEBERN —BREREAMRE
A—BEEMRBEE) 2FERE
BERE  BEXFPREMEMEAH
A :@EEBFERE#HNEE
S TR LB Rz kb)) B #
ETFRHE#ANEE  AZEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(1ir)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term of less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
The Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective

1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(1ir)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g. a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective

1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach and
recognised all the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings as at the date of initial application
(1 April 2019). The comparative information presented
in 2019 has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

(iv)

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities as at 1
April 2019 for leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17 and measured those lease
liabilities at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as at the date of initial application (1
April 2019).

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use
assets as at 1 April 2019 for leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16
had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as at the date of initial application (1 April 2019).

The Group has also applied the following practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with a term that will end within 12 months
of the date of initial application (1 April 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii)
excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset as at 1 April 2019 and (iv)
reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iv)  Transition (continued)

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied to all
of the Group’s lease contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and (i) not to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 4.

Except as described above regarding the impact of
HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above new/revised
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Early adoption of Amendments to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

The amendments allow, as a practical expedient, a lessee
elect not to assess whether a rent concession that meets the
conditions below is a lease modification.

A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change
in lease payments resulting from the rent concession the same
way it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if
the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following conditions are met: (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021 (for example, a rent concession would meet this
condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before
30 June 2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond
30 June 2021); and (iii) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

(c)

Early adoption of Amendments to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions (continued)

The Group has early applied the practical expedient to all
rent concessions that meet the conditions specified in the
Amendments. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group recognised HK$410,000 as negative variable lease
payments in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the Covid-19-related rent concessions provided by lessors.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group's current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
The effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments continues to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 -
Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of
“Material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRSs and
the Conceptual Framework, and incorporating supporting

requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is meant
by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and a
“business” to focus on returns from selling goods and services
to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above amendments to HKFRSs to
the Group. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions and/or the disclosure to these consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listings Rules”).

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value.

The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

84 \. E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amounts of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Goodwiill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(g)),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

86 \. E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

Goodwiill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount
to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to
profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the subsequent expenditure will flow to the Group
and the cost can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Over the lease terms
4 years or over the lease terms,

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

(e)(1) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

April 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term of less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
(e)(1) Leasing (accounting policies applied from
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1 Aprll 2019) (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EREFTHRw

(Continued)
(e)(1) Leasing (accounting policies applied from

@ EE(BE=ZF-IhFEHA—BLE

1 Aprll 2019) (Continued)

Lease ||ab|||ty (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or
a change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(e)(2) Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31

March 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed
to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(f)

0]

(ii)

90 \. E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in

accumulated impairment losses.

administrative expenses.

Customers relationship 5 years
Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 4(g)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Impairment of other assets (other than
financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investments in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as an income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash-generating unit
(see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or cash-generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Inventories
Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

()

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs")
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised

on trade receivables, other
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group

is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is

and has calculated ECLs based on

based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other receivables, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs.
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

However, when there has been a

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

0]

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 12
months past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable cost
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the
discharged, cancelled or expires.

relevant contract is

4. BEBREFTHEXRw
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ERASEEEREMRAT 201920FF%K / 95

TRMEE

AEBGSFEREEELENEN
HHEESBBEDE - REHKA
AAENERABEVNSIRAFEE
BAAEENEREERAGE -

REHEKAFEZSHAGBER
FE 5 3RIR Ko EL At R85 5RO0R - HL AR
ERBERMERIZ B KA E -
FHRNSRXRERPRER -

WaskBEERNRILERBERE
BHENIESDER -

BERREE
ERMNBZEZRFESREELS
MABEBEEXARLBRRED
BEAMBWARFIERZ 2% -
ERMNESEEEREEXAR
TR Hisk (A ) A IR
B B 3R A BT R RIR & WK 3K
Z A .

EHITH
AR E AT 4 25 TR LR K AT
BB EREBITRAMELRE -

RIERER
AEHEESHMEERAMIRRK
BERERNENER oA
EECEZ AZEEREERE
B E LR F IR S LR
BER RIERASRHEE -

TRABERERANMIAEE
fERR - EHREME AR LLRER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(1)
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Income tax
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
the average tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable
income of the periods in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (1) when the existing temporary differences will
reverse and (2) the amount of future taxable income in those
years. The estimate of future taxable income includes:

= income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

= reversals of existing temporary differences.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or services may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

3 provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

3 creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

3 does not create an asset with an alternative use to

the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(k)

0]

(i)

Sales of lighting and furniture products
and tableware and giftware products

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 30 days. In the comparative period, revenue
from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which was taken as at the
time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Some of the Group's contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides customers a right of
return (a right to exchange another product). These
rights of return do not allow the returned goods to
be refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The
application of the constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that will be deferred.
In the comparative period, revenue for these contracts
was recognised when a reasonable estimate of the
returns could be made, provide that all other revenue
recognition criteria are met. If a reasonable estimate
could not be made, such revenue would be deferred
until the return period lapsed or a reasonable estimate
could be made.

Other revenue

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the principal outstanding at the
applicable interest rate.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

U]

(m)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
The group entities incorporated in Hong Kong manage a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme"”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF scheme. The
Group makes contributions based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries funded by the Group and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling
when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

(iii) ~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

4. BEBREFTHEXRw

(o)

(p)

BRERIAREE

BN B R0 & F R M ARYE A T i
EEME MEEZABERTEFTENL
KENGERAIGEM G SEE - B8
AEERHFXCENRERIBES -

MR EMN T BN AR A
T REH BEER ARG - MEHE
TEERAAEBERE EELENE
S B AT RE (AR K A (R Rl iR o 2B A] BE
EENEE  HFAEEEN—ExREE
AREENBEEFTELERIE TR
BRIAAE  BRIFLBEN & INR A
BE ME IR K B E Bl

BER
(@ MEUTAL BZALTHZA
TZERRAEEERE:

(i) S RS AN EE

(iy HAKBEEAFEN &K

(iy AAEBEXAARZFAFN
TEEEENE -

(b) A TIMEMEGEN  BIEEE

AEBEFRE:

(i) ZERHEASEBR-—£E
ZKERRI(AMZEME R
A WBARKRRZRWEA
A LEHEAERAE)

(ii) —HERBAS —EEMNEE

AAIHBELE(HE—F
BAKERR ZEEE K

BRAzBERAHAZED

%)

(i) WMEEBHRR-—FZ=7K
EEDE:

(ivv, —HEBAF=FEBHNE
BEhE ME—EBAZSE

=HERBNBERR:

ERPEEZERERLT 201920658k / 101




102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of key

management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personal

services to the group or to the group’s parent.

(viii)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors

are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(a)

(b)

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews and identifies at the end of each
financial period, provision for inventories (if any) is based
on recent sales performance, management experience with
characteristic customer purchase behaviour and assessment
of the product’s alignment with current market trend. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest market prices and current market
conditions. The assessment of the provision amount required
involves management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provision charge/written back in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade receivables,
using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECLs model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a

material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions, and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax outcome
of these transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are deductible
temporary differences and all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the unused
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits, which affects the probability
of utilisation and tax rate to be used in the calculations.

recognised for all

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

The Group reviews internal and external sources of
information at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased,
except in the case of goodwill. The Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount when any such indication exists.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and these risks specific to the assets. The preparation of
projected future cash flows involves the estimation of future
revenue and operating costs which are based on reasonable
assumptions supported by information available to the
Group. Changes in the estimates would result in additional
impairment provisions or reversal of impairment in future
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting, in accordance with the Group's internal
organisation and reporting structure, provided to the chief operating
decision-maker to make strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments are managed
separately as each business offers different products and requires
different business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Lighting and furniture = retail of lighting products and
business household furniture in Hong Kong
Tableware, giftware — retail and wholesale of tableware and

and other business giftware and other trading worldwide

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that is used
by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %3 & B4 75 3k 2% M =t
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEERw
(a) Business segment (@) XK o I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEZ-_TF=A=1T—RHLFE
Tableware,
Lighting and giftware
furniture and other
business business Total
Kk EH -BR
REXK RHEMER Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHExT FET
Revenue from external customers REINEE P U A 66,522 2,993 69,515
Reportable segment result ERDEELE 10,043 (404) 9,639
Other segment information: Hibp &R :
Depreciation of property, plant and M- HERZED
equipment e 610 - 610
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 10,765 - 10,765
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BEKRRK
equipment VRN 50 - 50
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FERAEEEREEE 1,593 = 1,593
Additions to property, plant and RNEWMHE  BERREE
equipment 22 = 22
Additions to right-of-use assets REBAREE 11,371 - 11,371
ECLs reversed on trade receivables, net BWARIBBEEE
BB E & E 4 - 4
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_Z-hAhF=A=1t—RHItEE
Tableware,
Lighting and giftware
furniture and other
business business Total
Bk EA- 2R \
REE®B RHEMEB “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FH T
Revenue from external customers KEINEREFUA 72,083 6,682 78,765
Reportable segment result EWRDEELE 13,667 (8) 13,659
Other segment information: Hih 5 & & %
Interest income A B U A 1 - 1
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- - BERZED
equipment e 562 23 585
Additions to non-current assets REERBDEE 419 = 419
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BB R
equipment VEREY R = 20 20
ECLs (recognised)/reversed on trade W IE 2 BBREEE
receivables, net B(HER),/B#ZFE (57) 2 (55)
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMBHRNE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEH =
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment results (b) 2RI BEEZHIK
2020 2019
ZBE-2H —EZNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment result ERDEHESE 9,639 13,659
Other gains or losses — impairment loss Hihlm R EE - B RERE
on goodwill = (19,817)
Other gains or losses — impairment loss Etha=mkEIE - BEFEERE
on intangible assets & - (1.877)
Other gains or losses — impairment loss Elam Rk EBE - ¥ BERR
on property, plant and equipment HREEE (4) -
Other gains or losses — impairment loss HsmkEE - EREEERE
on right-of-use assets E#E (114) -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE (694) -
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEREZ(BRERRAE
(warehousing and general office %)
expenses) (10,674) (11,222)
Other unallocated corporate expenses R R (M)
(note) (3.115) (5,428)
Consolidated loss before tax MRBiRT AR & B 1B (4,962) (24,685)

Note:

Other unallocated corporate expenses mainly consist of

professional expenses and other administrative expenses.

(c)

Mad: R RO ECXRAXIZEREXEER

AREMITHRAS

Segment assets and liabilities (0 Z7HMEERERE
2020 2019
—B-2F —_ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Lighting and furniture business RSN 32,854 25,637
Tableware, giftware and other business BE -BmRkHEMED 2,755 3,388
Consolidated total assets mEBAE 35,609 29,025
Liabilities =R
Lighting and furniture business B 8 & R B TS 19,004 7,409
Tableware, giftware and other business BE EBoRkHEMEY 112 191
Consolidated total liabilities RERAE 19,116 7,600

ERAKEERAERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= B 3%

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. DEER @
(d) Geographic information (d) tEEH
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue TREHNAEERBINF TSP Z WA Z
from external customers: DA
2020 2019
HKS$' 000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (P ) 67,059 73,771
North America 3k 3 M 1,751 4,052
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FR(TBESE) 705 384
Other countries H b B =R = 558
69,515 78,765
(e) Information about major customers e) BEEXEEZEFMNER

K%@Iﬁuﬁz)\ EBHAEBMREE
—EE=ZRA=t+-RILFERELEE
ﬁm%ﬁﬁ%)ﬁ(_z NE &)

The Group had no customer for whom the revenue raised
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total
revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

7. REVENUE 7. EXH
Disaggregation of revenue WA 55l
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REGREBRIBVARHEEHSNES &R
products and timing of revenue recognition are as follows: A5
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Revenue from contracts with customers ERMBREENFISHREE AN
within the scope of HKFRS 15: EFARKA:
Sales of lighting and furniture products HERE MR AEE® 66,522 72,083
Sales of tableware and giftware products HEBAREMEM 2,993 6,682
69,515 78,765
Timing of revenue recognition: NS
At a point in time £ K 2 69,515 78,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

REVENUE (continued) 7. EX¥w
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) WA 25 @0
The following table provides information about trade receivables and TRIBEHEBHEEKREUARKETRFEONE
contract liabilities from contracts with customers. HNEBEEH -
2020 2019
—T-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Trade receivables (note 20) JE W2 3% 78 (M 3% 20) 668 638
Contract liabilities (note 22) &7 & & (i sE22) 873 1,409
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration EHNEBEFEHRNBERFNENRKERR - M
received from customers. HK$911,000 of the contract liabilities as RZT—NFMHA—HEKAEI,0008TE
of 1 April 2019 has been recognised as revenue for the year ended BRAABE-_E-_TFE=A=+—HILFEXN
31 March 2020. WA o
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hftlw A hzmKEE
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FH T
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FERAEEERERE (1,707) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #1% * BB &k & R E E 12 (54) (20)
ECLs reversed/(recognised) on trade receivables, B KRB ZEHEERIE
net B, (R)CFE) 4 (55)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment EE¥W¥ MEIKZEHNEE (7) -
Gain on lease modification & 7] 10 & R 38 2= 4 =
Bank interest income #RA7H B A 1 1
Impairment loss on goodwiill EEREEE - (19,817)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EVEAEREREE - (1.877)
Others HAb 443 230
(1,316) (21,538)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= B 3%

LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. KRHBIAIEIE
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging: BR 7% A S B 2 H0BR -
2020 2019
—E-TF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET F#& T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 1AM B & 626 746
Costs of inventories recognised as expenses BRARIHEEKAN
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFERAE 27,447 32,154
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss FEREEBEREE 1,207 (99)
on inventories, net (= #8) %)
28,654 32,055
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment -WE - BERREHE 610 585
- right-of-use assets (note) - EAEEE (M) 10,765 -
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEE#HE = 1,608
(included in administrative expenses) (FFAfTER )
Lease expenses under HKFRS 16 REBERE BB REER
FleH 2 HE X H
— short-term leases -REHEE 4,847 =
— variable lease payments - ZEBAEMK 18 -
Lease payments for leases previously classified 1835 & /& & 5+ % B 51758
as operating leases under HKAS 17 ERIDBERKEHE 2
HEMK
— minimum lease payments - REBEMK - 14,770
- contingent rent - A = 95
= 14,865
Employee costs (note 10) & 8 B A (B 5310) 16,053 17,592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. BRMAIEBEw
Note: B 5 -
As further explained in note 2(a), the Group has initially applied BN 2@ E— TR AEEEFEAL
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted BITEBEAERERB BN B REERF6
the opening balances as at 1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use S WHBR-Z-—NFONA—BRAZENE
assets relating to leases which were previously classified as operating % UEREBEEAI 2B AT B STELFE17
leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets FRETRKEHEZHEZFRAEEE - N=F
as at 1 April 2019, the Group as lessee is required to recognise the —NFOA—BEREREAEEEEL A%
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy E(EARABAN) BEERERAEEENE - M3k
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on MERBMERABEREZNHEERANERLCEM
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the EETEAZHSAZ RELFETES
comparative information has not been restated. P LL B E R o
EMPLOYEE COSTS 10. EE (AR
2020 2019
—E-FF ZZT—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FH& T
Employee costs (including directors) comprise: EEXAK(BREES)BHE:
Salaries and other benefits e kHMEF 15,473 16,920
Contributions to defined contribution M) € 58t BUR R ET Bl 2 it 3K
retirement plans 580 672
16,053 17,592
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11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 1. EEFHEREERSTHMHAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@) Directors’ emoluments (@) EE=FHFm
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to EXNSENTFEMNEETHTHATED
each of the directors is as follows: T
Executive directors HITESE
The emoluments paid or payable to executive directors during RAFEEXZNHES TFRITESTN S
the year are as follows: BT :

Contributions
to defined
Salaries contribution

and other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
) 7 88 it
ek BIRGHEIZ
e H 138 R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHER FHER FERx
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ-F_FF=H=+-AL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond AT B 58 = 2,035 18 2,053
Hue Kwok Chiu AT 4l = 608 18 626
Hui Kwok Wing EREIES - 473 17 490
= 3,116 53 3,169
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_Z—NF=RA=+—AHIE
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond AT B 58 - 2,265 18 2,283
Hue Kwok Chiu AT 4l = 654 18 672
Hui Kwok Wing EREIES = 504 18 522
= 3,423 54 3,477
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11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

N EFFMWNREERESEHMMA LT

()

Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EZEFMw
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RAFEESNTFELIERTESHNIE
the year are as follows: o (N
Contributions
to defined
Salaries contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
€ 8
ek Btz
e Hin g Al EE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERx FHx FHx FERx
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ-_T-_ZTF=H=+—-AHL
Chung Wai Man BEN 165 - - 165
Leung Wai Chuen ZER 165 - - 165
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann BRIE 165 - - 165
495 - - 495
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE-_T-NF=A=+—H8Lt
Chung Wai Man BEN 180 = = 180
Leung Wai Chuen ZER 180 = = 180
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann BR 7 180 = = 180
540 = = 540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

11.

BF 75 ok MY =

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE N ESFEEERSHFHMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBBESHHM AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEENREESTMALTH  EFE
Group, two (2019: two) were directors of the Company whose BRARBESR(ZT—NF WEB)
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11(a) MEFHE R EN@QFPEHEFE - #
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) T=BAT(ZE-NF:=ZR)FM®M
individuals are as follows: 8 8
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH& T
Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ%&ﬁi\@ﬁﬁl 1,782 1,874
Contributions to defined contribution M) E 88 BUR KT 81 2 5Kk
retirement plans 54 54
1,836 1,928

Emoluments paid to each of above individuals for each of the
year fell within the following band:

FNFLATEER LR A THBEWT

2020 2019

—EEE —hE

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

ALTHEE ATHHE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 7 751,000,000 3 3

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019:
Nil). During the year ended 31 March 2020, all six directors
agreed to reduce their emoluments by 50% for three months
from 1 February 2020 to 30 April 2020 and reduce their
emoluments by 30% for three months from 1 May 2020 to
31 July 2020, as part of control measures. (2019: None of the
directors nor the five highest paid individuals have waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year).
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The amount of income tax credit in the consolidated statement of

12. TEHER

RiEaEEkEMEE R aRTOMEHRE

profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents: REA:

2020 2019
—2-%2% -T-Af
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERR 18 — B & F 15 T
— charge for the year — RAEEXH (6) (57)
— over-provision in respect of prior year — BEFEBERE 52 -
46 (57)

Deferred tax (note 24) iR AE % 18 (B 5E24)

— (charge)/credit for the year - AEE(EE) EH (14) 490
— effect of change in tax rates — BEEHHTE (2) 5
(16) 495
Income tax credit FriS MK % 30 438

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced a two-
tiered profits tax rates regime by enacting the Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”). Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of qualifying corporations is taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits at 16.5%. The Ordinance is effective

from the year of assessment 2018/19.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is calculated in accordance with

the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

& 7B T £20184F 378 @ B <2018F Fi 15 (18
HEEEAR VA T IDEE-9i R ke x
Ml o MBMEH MR AERCENE
2,000,000/ 7T f& 7% £ K 8 &9 & & /58.25% -
i & T A FE 5T & A Bl B16.5% © :Z1& 6 8
2018 /19:R Bt F [& 4B 4 AKX ©

A BE_ZT_TFR-_ZFT—NAF=ZA=+
—HULEFENEBEMNESHREEHRIEFEHM
WA EHE o
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12. FIEHE R @
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMENERATEGEER R AMEE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WaRMAROMRRATEEEERNT

comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
—EZEF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH& T
Loss before tax W 5 A &5 18 4,962 24,685
Tax credit calculated at the applicable domestic — ¥&2 7N #b i A i R &1 & 2 AT 1S Fi 4K
tax rate B EE 819 4,105
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAMBRAZ 2B E
for tax purposes = (3,272)
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised AEREMIELEHRBZHIETE (302) 15
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRIERH B8 Zmﬁ%% 2 (626) (416)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  #EZBRF W A 2 Tl 1§ 2 - 1
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised Eﬁ}fﬁ FERARERZNBEEE 89 -
Effect on opening deferred tax balances MEEHHFVNELEHEHAOTE
resulting for change in tax rates 2) 5
Over-provision in respect of prior year BAFEHBBERE 52 -
Income tax credit FEHESL 30 438
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13. LOSS PER SHARE

13. BERRE#E

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to

ARREBARGEZERERRETHERIE

the owners of the Company is based on the following data: RUATEEAE
2020 2019
—E2E-2F _—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT F#& T
Loss: ki~
Loss for the year for the purpose of calculating i &t & & I & A &% #58
basic and diluted loss per share EBEZFRNEE (4,932) (24,247)
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-hF
‘000 ‘000
T B’ T &
Number of shares: RHEE:
Weighted average number of shares for the MAETRARRESE
purpose of calculating basic and diluted loss B8z n#EFEHI R M ER
per share 451,036 451,036
Notes: Bt 7
(i) Basic loss per share was calculated by dividing the loss attributable (i) BRERAEEARBEEAARGER  BRUF

to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(ii) For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, diluted loss per share
was the same as basic loss per share as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2020

and 2019.

14. DIVIDENDS

14.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of reporting period (2019: Nil).

NEETER

(i) HE—
FE EE NBE_T

==
Hxﬁ&?é%wﬁi B E AR RAER o

RE

E=aTER
15 R A9 AE A B
RT3 R HEHJ& (ZF

DH

O A FI BB AHE o

—EER-F-NF=A=+-AL
TER-FT-NF=A

IR EEAEFTERBE > Bt

E‘JE@ZJ: T-_FTF=F=+—H
CMBRSHEEEBN
—hFE)

AEEEERERAR 2019206% / 117




118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 75 SRR MY &

15. % - BWEKRKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
£B
HEMEHEE SET ] a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FEL
Cost AR
As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZE-N\F=A=+—H 6,049 2,106 8,155
Additions at cost R AR 5 404 15 419
Disposal BRE (1,500) (239) (1,739)
As at 31 March 2019 R—ZE-NhF=ZB=+—H 4,953 1,882 6,835
Additions at cost BR AR 5 = 22 22
Disposal BRE (52) (115) (167)
As at 31 March 2020 R-—ZE-_ZTF=F=+—H 4,901 1,789 6,690
Accumulated depreciation and RIAFERAMERSE
impairment losses
As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZE-N\&=A=+—H 5,214 1,686 6,900
Depreciation e 205 380 585
Impairment loss HEEE 20 20
Written back on disposal e & B B [l (1,500) (239) (1,739)
As at 31 March 2019 R—ZE-NF=ZB=+—H 3,939 1,827 5,766
Depreciation E 571 39 610
Impairment loss (Note) HEEE 54 = 54
Written back on disposal e & B B ol (72) (88) (160)
As at 31 March 2020 RZFZTF=A=+—H 4,492 1,778 6,270
Net book value REEE
As at 31 March 2019 R—ZE-NE=ZB=1+—H 1,014 55 1,069
As at 31 March 2020 RZZ-_FTF=A=+—H 409 11 420
Note: B 5
The impairment loss related to property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB K 5% 1E B R (B £954,00008 T (ZF

amounting to HK$54,000 (2019: HK$20,000) have been recorded in
other gains and losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, retail
shops are determined as CGUs. The impairment losses attributable
to those CGUs were then allocated to write down the assets in the
CGUs (including right-of-use assets (Note 16) and related property,
plant and equipment).
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS EREEE
Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$000
THET
Cost RIS
As at 1 April 2019 —hEFEMmMA—H -
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 JEREBEBMBEREIHRE ZZE 10,849
Additions 30 11,371
Disposal/Modification BE M&E] (1,185)
As at 31 March 2020 RZTEZTF=A=+—H 21,035
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt ERREEE
As at 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFMA—H -
Depreciation e 10,765
Impairment loss recognised VERIEW R 1,707
Written back on disposal/Modification BE MEFIREE (1,003)
As at 31 March 2020 RZTE=-_TF=A=+—H 11,469
Net book value REEE
As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NE=A=+—H =
As at 31 March 2020 R-—F_FTF=/=1+—H 9,566

EREEERE

5 A& E MR EA91,707,000/8 7T (ZF— L
BIEREMKEREERR  BEREEE
Y B TE B O 2 EL AT U B £ 38 49119,000/8 T
HBERARANE  TEERHRERRREESE
testing, retail shops are determined as CGUs. The impairment losses By - REZEHReELEEUZREHBENTE
attributable to those CGUs were then allocated to write down the PEZEZEHReELEUNEE(BEYE -
assets in the CGUs (including property, plant and equipment (Note WEREZEMFSD)REAEAELEE) -
15) and related right-of-use assets).

Impairment of right-of-use assets

The impairment loss related to right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$1,707,000 (2019: Nil) has been recognised in other gains and
losses to write down the carrying amount of the CGUs to its
recoverable amount of HK$119,000. For the purpose of impairment

DH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

Zri—*

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs in which the right-of-
use assets were included have been determined from value-in-
use calculations based on cash flow projections from formally
approved budgets covering a five-year period and adopted pre-tax
discount rate of 13.81%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate
of 3%, which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
retail industry in Hong Kong. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are budgeted gross margin of 44% to 53%, growth
rate of 3% to 6.42% and wage inflation of 3%. The budgeted
gross margin and growth rate are determined based on the unit's
past performance and management’s expectations regarding market
development. Wage inflation has been based with reference to
the independent economic data published by the Census and
Statistics Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. The discount rate is determined based on
the Hong Kong risk-free interest rate adjusted by the specific risk
associated with the CGUs.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the consumption-related activities
have been seriously disrupted and the performance of Group's retail
business have been adversely affected. This had an adverse impact
on the estimated value-in-use of certain CGUs and impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
recognised.
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THEBREERINESE  EEBRETSRES
TEMSMNRAKER - FREEFEREN
FTEBIARBEENEKREL44%E53% - HEIE
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R B o
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17.

Customers
relationship
EFB#%
HK$'000
T TT
Cost R A
As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZZE-N\FMHA—QB
31 March 2020 —E-hEFE=ZRA=+t—-HRK
—E-TEFE=FR=+—H 8,041
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 2B R REEIE
As at 1 April 2018 RZF—N\FWHA—H 4,556
Amortisation B 5H 1,608
Impairment loss BIEEE 1,877
As at 31 March 2019 and RZZE—NF=A=+—HK
31 March 2020 —E-TEFE=FR=+—H 8,041
Net book value REFE
As at 31 March 2019 RZFE—NF=A=+—H =
As at 31 March 2020 R-—ZE-_ZEF=A=+—H =
18. GOODWILL 18. BIE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost 24
As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZZE—N\FWMA—H
31 March 2020 —E—NF=ZA=+—H8EK
—T-TF=A=+—H 36,906
Accumulated impairment losses ZtREEE
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—H 17,089
Impairment loss BEEE 19,817
As at 31 March 2019 and R-E—NAF=ZA=+—H8BEK
31 March 2020 —T-TF=A=1+—H 36,906

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BB E

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019

BREEE
R-E-—NAF=F=+—H

As at 31 March 2020

R-E-_ZTF=A=+—H

ERPEEZERERLT 201920968k / 121




122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

19.

Zr—i—*

W

AN

A MR EE

GOODW”_L (Continued) 18 ﬁﬁ%(’:)
Impairment of goodwill EmERE
For the purpose of impairment testing in the year ended 31 March MRZE-NF=RA=+—BIEFERENR
2019, goodwill was allocated to cash-generating unit (“CGU") of ms AEEITRZZEARERERZERE
sales of tableware and giftware products. The recoverable amounts ABN((ReELEN])  ReEEEMMA
of the CGU had been determined from value in use calculations WeEleHEREAEBEEE  MERBEDRE
based on cash flow projections from formally approved budgets KHEMRF B ERIR SR ETE A KX16.6%
covering a five-year period and adopted pre-tax discount rate of MAMBAXFERSLE - BaAFHBNRS
16.6%. Cash flow beyond the five-year period was extrapolated MEDERAGGFEHEREI%ES - BT
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%, which RETERMBHRMGRE - FHEABATE
did not exceed the long-term growth rate for the industry. The key FENEERBR/TEEENER20% E23% Kk
assumptions for the value in use calculations are budgeted gross FEEREA3%E5% @ WWMIBEIEFBEEN
margin of 20% to 23% and growth rate of 3% to 5%, which were MBEFRALAEEBY MBS EENTERERE -
determined based on the unit's past performance and management’s FTARREDREBEDEERRANEME - Wit
expectations regarding market development. The discount rate was ReEFBEVARBEERRAE -
determined based on the Hong Kong risk-free interest rate adjusted
by the specific risk associated with the CGU.
Goodwill impairment of approximately HK$19,817,000 was made AR ZB=2RNRETHM  BeELEELLE
due to the recently intensively competitive environment within FIEZRENOAEBERIRF - WEHES
which the CGU operates, as a result of macro business environment BRI {E4919,817,000%8 T - At - BEEEH
uncertainty. Management had therefore adjusted their expected BRGELSBU2BHABMNBEAR - LstREKX
profit forecast for the CGU to allow for the impact of material MSHFNZZE -
competitiveness in the market.
INVENTORIES 19. #E
2020 2019
—B-®HF —Z-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER F& T
Merchandise & o 9,504 11,220
Less: provision of impairment loss B FEEREEEBEE (2,045) (838)
7,459 10,382

A provision of impairment loss of approximately HK$1,207,000
(2019: Reversal of impairment loss of HK$99,000) against the
carrying value of merchandise have been recognised during the year.
This provision arose due to slow moving of certain lighting and
household furniture products as a result of a change in consumer
preferences.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. B RIE R HAth B TR 1IE
2020 2019
—E-EF  ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade receivables FE W R 18 668 638
Deposits and other receivables Re R HEMERRIE 5,284 5,715
Prepayments T8 R IE 4,186 3,856
Total @t 10,138 10,209
Less: non-current — rental deposits WA -HERS (2,052) (2,806)
8,086 7,403
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days from HEBYH T EEHAEEARZ0K - ©¥
invoice date. At the end of reporting period, ageing analysis of the HEHAR AR - FEM KR IE (N BR R E &5 18162,000
trade receivables (net of impairment losses of HK$162,000 (2019: BITE (- — % : 166,000/ T)IRBEEHRH
HK$166,000)), based on invoice dates, are as follows: B BRI DTN T ¢
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Within 30 days 30K A 282 402
31 to 90 days 31£290K 100 49
91 to 180 days 91£180k 209 164
Over 180 days B 8180K 77 23
668 638
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20. FEUWRFRIE K H b FE IR FX I8 (a0
N5 B4R 5 BT s 4G)Gi) T 80 51 B & 5 R FE
RAEE K - AN B 30 4 5k E W B R A E IR
HRIEAE M (s BIGRIEME ©

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group and the Company assessed impairment loss based on
the accounting policy stated in note 4(i)(ii). The Group did not hold
any collateral as security or other credit enhancement over the trade
receivables.

FHEEFEERRRAEEBKERNERR
@ H)HE — P B E N M FE30(b) ©

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade receivables are set out in note 30(b).

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21, FEASRRIE R H A B A FROE
2020 2019
—E-8F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Trade payables JE T 5 1E 4,222 3,694
Accruals and other payables J& 5t R IR Ko HoAth & 5 IR 2,362 2,361
6,584 6,055

ENHRERIEFE - AEE—REN F302
18ORZIEEH - R EHER - BHRIER
HEHHHRE DT

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally
granted credit terms ranging from 30 to 180 days. At the end of
reporting period, ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on
invoice dates, are as follows:

2020 2019

—E-EF —ET-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHE T

Within 30 days 30K 1,469 1,803
31 to 60 days 31260K 771 525
61 to 90 days 61290k 605 624
Over 90 days B EI0K 1,377 742
4,222 3,694
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3%

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract

22.

BHEE
AEBERBIATRARBE AR

liabilities:
2020 2019
—B-%F T AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FA T
Contract liabilities EHEaE 873 1,409
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEBENEH
2020 2019
—E_TF —ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FH T
Balance at the beginning of the year F ) 1,409 768
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFAERFINTAGHNEERNIKRA
recognising revenue during the year that mEHRELEERD (M E7)
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (note 7) (911) (338)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AWEREFHENREmMSE N
advanced consideration received from SR AaEEM
customers 375 979
Balance at the end of the year G 873 1,409

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

When the Group receives sales deposits from customers before
the delivery of goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract. Contract liabilities are recognised until the
goods are delivered and accepted by the customers. The unsatisfied
performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one
year.

LEASE LIABILITIES

HKFRS 16 Leases was adopted on 1 April 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. For an explanation of the transitional
requirements that were applied as at 1 April 2019, see Note 2(a).
In addition, the Group early adopted Amendments to HKFRS 16
— Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions as disclosed in Note 2(b).
The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of initial
application, 1 April 2019, as disclosed in note 4(e)(1).

23.

BEMIMNE  LEB—ARLE - ATAEEE
Y BB (205 5 3K B &Y B F] 7R A B 5N - (2 AT
MR AR EUK -

ERAKEEXINEMZAIRETFRER - &
EERNANREBELEANEE AHNAEE
EMRMNREFPEXZEER - HAEKEH
BEEHR -—FRRER -

HESE
EAUBREENFICER-_S—NENA—
B  TESIERET - FR=ZT—NF
MA—BFEAZAREREZEE RN
2@) ° N AEBRERME BB RELE
BIZE1658 2 &3] — ECOVID-19BMA L E
B BRI E20)  c REXEABH(ZZE—
NEMA—B)RERZETBUREZERK =
4(e)(1) °
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Zri—*

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The Group leases various offices, retail shops and warehouses under
lease agreements. The lease agreements are between one and three
years. The leases of certain retail shops comprise fixed payments
and variable payments over the lease terms (call for additional
rentals), which will be based on a certain percentage of revenue of
the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the respective rental agreements.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contracts to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the leases. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing

was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk of lessee; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term and
security.
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23.
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HEEBw

—_— ==

HEXB2MEWER/EBAA)

AEBBBEHEREERE THLAE  TEE
HRRE - 2EHERERB—E2=F -FT
ZEEFRNEEREREAERFELHEENR K
FRNR(BRENIER) FAESHERES
TH & 15 5 T B B 1R R B R RS B R
HmE—EBDLLEE -

ARFEEHENRFHEEARD - AEER
BHERGFHEHEKSD 2 HEEBERS &
BRZRESEZHEERFEEHAKILD °

HEHNRENEELTER  AREZEN
R B i - T E 1 T & 5 I E (T 225 -
HEEETSREERZER -

HERBNDEREERS ZM KRR - WE
ZEFEEZMNE(RNEE2HERT ML)
A fE A A 238 8 B3 X - BIE Bl A& 7H
ARBUEERERZBCUE - EH R
HREARGEERBEEE CEERECEE
imEzEEME AT ZRIE -

RETREEFRNE  AKH:

. £ R] BE 1B T2 AR M8 Bl AR AT B RS
ZE=ZFREER/ER  WIFHFEN
RMREBBE=ZTRENKBE FEMFZ

28

. SERARME  BERERBAZEERR
ABRERBRAE: &

. HEEFELSERE  WFH - BR -
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 23. HEEBw
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEXEBZ2HEWEREAR ANw
IeSSEE) (Continued)
Land and
Lease liabilities buildings
HEARK T REF
HK$'000
FET
Balance at the beginning of the year Bk 10,849
Additions 3 11,371
Interest expense A B 694
Lease payments HER®K (11,208)
Effect on modification of lease term B HERR TR (186)
Balance at the end of the year FRE R 11,520
The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is as RREEREZRESITWT
follows:

At 31 March At 1 April

2020 2019

—EC-EHF —E-hF

=A=+—H H—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current liabilities mE AR 8,195 7,713
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 3,325 3,136
11,520 10,849
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES (continuea) 23. HEE&EBw
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEXEBZ2HEWEREARA Nw
Iessee) (Continued)
2020
—ECEH
HK$'000
TER
Short-term lease expense EEAELR N 4,847
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in THAHERARBFEZFBHEE
the measurement of lease liabilities T AE 18
Credit relating to negative variable lease payments not TNHAHEBGEHECZAZHEAE
included in the measurement of lease liabilities (note) - FRAE A K e (BT &) (410)
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short-term leases KRB EHEERAEES 969
Note: B 5
Negative variable lease payments represent covid-19-related rent concessions BFHEEMNRBEEARMEECOVID-19F #HHE
reduced lease payments provided by lessors. SEBE -

128
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24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year

24. IEIE 55 18

BEERIBEE,(ABE)REAFEZEHMT:

are as follows:

Fair value

Accelerated  Decelerated  adjustment

tax tax on intangible
depreciation  depreciation assets Total

niE bR BREE
BEHRE BRERE ATEAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&T TEL FEL T&T
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE-NEWMA—A (10) 346 (575) (239)
Effect of change in tax rates (note) HEEBHNTE 5 = = 5
Credit to profit or loss (note 12) B EEA M 12) 3 (88) 575 490
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=A=1+—H ) 258 = 256
Effect of change in tax rates (note) HEEHNTE @) - - @
Credit to profit or loss (note 12) R EEA (M 12) 4 (18) - (14)
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_TF=A=+—H - 240 - 240

MieE: FUETERERERBEARBRBMRBITE o
AR R EERNAFENAFIA - F
1 (if FE 4 R ) IR 3T B 4% 62 B 38 B A IR R 4R
BB R MU AFEEREERCEERE
Bl nag B BN EA B IHIE B SR AR — B X -

Note: The opening deferred tax balance is adjusted to reflect the effects
of the two-tiered tax rates. Since current tax for the year is subject
to the two-tiered tax rates, the opening (as opposed to the closing)
deferred tax balance is adjusted to reflect the two-tiered tax rates so
that temporary differences originating and reversing during the year
will be subject to the same tax rates as other items subject to current
tax.

VAT R FE 7 I8 B B M R RE AR

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following:

2020 2019

—E-FF —T—-hnF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Deductible temporary differences AEAEREER 3,917 1,298
Unused tax losses REARIEEER 47,373 42,636
51,290 43,934

B 7 R B TR R 2 A 2ROR - R 30 A st AT R A
BEREZERARS AT IEBEERRLER
BEE - AJENERBUEZRERADABEAER
BRAERRESE -
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No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZEREE EEREE
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as at FREECB T2 AR
1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZTE-—N\FNA—H —ZEZ—hAhFEF=ZA=1t—8H
31 March 2020 r=ZE-_TF=F=1+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and R-Z—/\FMA-—B - —T—HhE=ZA=+—8EK
31 March 2020 —Z-TF=A=+—H 451,035,713 4,510
All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then FREmeiREARERN=ZERSZFHS -
existing shares.
26. RESERVES 26. f&1&
Group RE
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the AEEREAREEINFERRNGEER
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. FERP o
Share premium % 17 35 B
The share premium account of the Group represents the premium REBZROBRERRKRAUEEZETRMOA
arising from the issuance of shares at premium. FHEEE -
Company b /N
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
% 17 )% 8 2t 8 “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T IT T IT T IT
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZZE—N\F=ZA=+—H 67,066 (26,228) 40,838
Loss and total comprehensive income — FREE & 2 = 425
for the year - M (M
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 67,066 (26,229) 40,837
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ FREE & 2 = 425
for the year = (42,017) (42,017)
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_ZTF=A=+—H 67,066 (68,246) (1,180)
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASE

Operating leases — As lessee (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2019)

The Group leases various offices, retail shops and warehouses
under non-cancellable lease agreements. The lease agreements are
between one and three years, and majority of lease arrangements
are renewable at the end of the lease period with either pre-set
increment rate or market rate to be agreed with landlords.

The operating leases of certain retail shops also call for additional
rentals, which will be based on a certain percentage of revenue
of the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the respective rental agreements.
As the future revenue of these retail shops could not be accurately
determined as at the end of the year, the relevant contingent rentals
have not been included.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of offices, retail shops and
warehouses are as follows:

27.

RAMBHRNE

HE
KeEHE-FFRBRBA(ERIA =
—NWE=ZA=1+—HZ8FHX)
AEEREFTREAEREHARAEFTHRA
= TEEFHRAE - ZSHERRAH—Z
=E ABHEERHIRERERERES
BN ERBEEHEOTELETUEE -

ETEEEHNKEAETEREIEE - A
S RIEEHE MR AT B AR 3R R R
BN ERBR SN —EBDLFAE - BRZ
& T E 5 AR R R BRI F IR E
M WS ARERAEE -

BRETAIRELCEHOERRAE  TEEH
ERXNORRZERSRBBLBEMOT

2019
—ZE-hEF
HK$'000
FHET

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

—FR

—FREEAFA

12,083
7,235

19,318
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28.

29.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28.

The Group had the following material transactions with its related
parties during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Compensation of key management personnel
Key management includes directors and senior managements. The
compensation paid or payable to key management personnel for

BEERTRS
AEMRHE-B_BFR-F-NF=A=+
—ALFERERBEHETTIEARS -

TEEBEABZHM
FEEREOAEFRARERAR - EXH
HEFEBEBABNRERBEFMOT :

employee services is shown below:

2020 2019

—B-%F% Z—FAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH& T

Salaries and other benefits FaekHMmEA 5,657 6,100
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans [ iF %8 fit 7K iR K 51 8] 2 4t & 124 126
5,781 6,226

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

29. ZEHIATEMEERETHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY B E
Below summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by RENESEHEERCRABNIMENAT
category:
2020 2019
—E_FF C—T-hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHB T
Financial assets SEMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: BRHERNATENECREE
Trade and other receivables FE U 3R TR I K i FE U SR IE 5,952 6,353
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 7,750 7,107
13,702 13,460
Financial liabilities SEAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BREERNAFENSRAE:
Trade and other payables FE SRR IE R H At FE A 3R IE 6,584 6,055
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,520 -
18,104 6,055
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group's overall risk management procedures focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation
of the Euro (“EUR”), United States dollar (“USD") and
Renminbi (“RMB”) against HKS$.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, management considers that
there is no significant foreign currency risk between these
two currencies to the Group.

The Group’s trade payables denominated in EUR and RMB
are in insignificant amount at the end of each of reporting
periods. The directors are of the opinion that the volatility of
the Group’s results against change in exchange rate of EUR
and RMB would not be significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk includes risks resulting from counterparty default
and risks of concentration. The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Most of the retail sales are made in cash or by credit cards.
In respect of sales on credit, the Group trades on credit only
with corporate customers who have an established trading
history with the Group. The Group has policies in place for
the control and monitoring of relevant credit risks. These
credit evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

30.

B % A be B
AEBNEBARZZERERR  BHEINER
B EERR RBHESAREMNERER - A
SENERAREEEFHHBEABRINS
B ISKkREREYH BEEEVBERR
PIERNEERET & -

(@) HpEE R B
AEFETE TUNINBFEONRER
5 EmEAZERFEAELENRR -
7N 68 [ 3R Rp I AR ONDE ORISR o AT
AEEEREESERIINERR RIENRAE
TEREEHITERNIINERE ©

AEBEIZAZE TR £
(ETEDRARBETAREDRETH
SN VE R B R o

MRBTEITHE BEEERRZ
MEEBLESAEETRKERINE
B

REREHEAR  AEBEHLEUB T
RARESHENENTE EFER5S
AEENZERB TR AREERZ S
iR AR E A o Bk - I EETH
RE DT °

(b) FERR
EERBEEASFIEOKARSE S
SIBMER AEEZEERBREIZR
BEBUKES KRR M EMERE - &
BEXEEERR  IREERASH
PIAEZZEEERR -

HRARBHOHEEARSRIAERRE
Me-sEEHEMS  AEEEERE
ERARUMRIELNARELETE
EXRS  AEEERHREREHREER
RENEEK - - EEEFHETREP
BEBNIHARBAZESE RRENRZ
BB UERZEERIRXPZARENLE
BEMEMZEERE
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the trade receivables from the five
largest debtors represented 44% (2019: 57%) of the total
trade receivables respectively, while the largest debtor
represented 22% (2019: 17%) of the total trade receivables
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

BF 75 ok MY =

B %5 B A”'EE )
) EHARE

Equf?E A=+—HB A%& K
B A 2 BB FR I A FE R 5118 48 BE44%
ZENF 57%) MEAEBEAZE
W 5% T8 RI) ik FE UK R TE 48 58 22% (=& —
NE17%) °

AEEBRERFRAFEDREEFENS
BORBBEERTERS )28 B
AEREE - - ARAEENBEEES
BERITERATATS DA EERE
AEEFHBEEZR BUBE-—FEIA
5B AR R PR R 8 B R O e S 4R B
1 -

The following table provides information about the Group’s TREHERAEER-_Z_TFR=
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at ZT-NF=R=1+—BHREKKEME
31 March 2020 and 2019: RHEERBREREESENER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
At 31 March 2020 loss rate amount allowance
R-E-_ZEF=H=+—H FEHEELL =R BERHEE EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) THERT THERT
Not past due oK i A 0.30 334 (1)
1-180 days past due B #11-180K 0.92 327 (3)
661 (4)
Individual assessment & B &5 & 169 (158)
830 (162)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
At 31 March 2019 loss rate amount allowance
T—NE=A=+—H TEHESEL = R E A BB EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FAT FA T
Not past due K #81 HA 0.99 406 (4)
1-180 days past due # HI1-180K 1.00 218 ()
624 (6)
Individual assessment & 51 &F & 180 (160)
804 (166)
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

30. Bii5 R B B B )

Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1%5@@(@)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FEHERLENRBASFONEREE
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect KB ABERE ZELERDNLEAR UK
differences between economic conditions during the period MAEKERLEHBEHAMOLERR - B
over which the historic data has been collected, current AR S0 LA Re AN £5 [ 46 JE U SR TE O T8 B 6
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over HEEGCERR B EZNER -
the expected lives of the receivables.
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowance that TRINTERERRENEHEHEE
has been recognised for trade receivables which is measured BERREEREZHE:
under lifetime ECL:
lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
- provision — individual
matrix assessment
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
ZHEHEE ZHEHEGE
B8 - JEmE &7 - @85l
B G
(EEERE) (EERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FHBT FABT
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FWOA—H 27 84 1M
Impairment loss (reserved)/ B EE (BB, ER (21) 76 55
recognised
As at 31 March 2019 R-E—NF=ZA=+—H 6 160 166
Impairment loss (reserved)/ WA B (R’ #R () (2) 4)
recognised
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_ZFF=A=+—H 4 158 162

The credit risks on rental deposits are considered to be low
as they can be recovered by offsetting against the rental
payments.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are reputable and creditworthy banks.

HEZREeWEERRBREFRE FERZ
BEEEEESNRATRD -

RekReEBUNEERRER @ R
ARYUFITREBEBRFHIRT
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited

BF 75 ok MY =

B 7% B e B

Liquidity risk (0 RBELEAR
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able MBECRABERNEEREEREAR
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities NESIHEMEREESESRARY
that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. EEEARRER  AEBESERMN
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement RERHEMENFERSEREREE
of trade and other payables, and also in respect of its cash BHEAZTEE SRR ﬁﬁﬁ,%%%i
flow management. The cash management of all operating BeReERETHRALE  BEES
entities is centralised, including the raising of funds to cover ;ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁj: ZJ»‘%E@Z =
expected cash demands. The Group's objective is to maintain BERBRENRSHEE  AREER
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements HEBERBENTSHEST R -
in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TEHIIRBEHARAEBRIETES R
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s ﬁ1ﬁﬁ'}ﬁ?—|—/\ﬂ D ER SR JhiR BB AN &
non-derivative based on undiscounted cash flows and the BB EXRNANSZERAHIEES R
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. gﬁaﬁ;ﬁﬁgiﬁ RenmEamel o
Carrying
Less than Total amount at
1 year or 1-2 2-5 undiscounted 31 March
At 31 March 2020 on demand years years cash flows 2020
R=B=%%
DRE AERREE =ZA=t-H
R-E-ZEE=F=1+-H FEER 126 2-54 TEHE #Y R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TER TR
Trade and other payables FE 1 FRIE I Ho At P 9 50 0E 6,584 - - 6,584 6,584
Lease liabilities (note) ME &R ) 8,566 2,972 440 11,978 11,520
15,150 2,972 440 18,562 18,104
Less than Total Carrying
1 year or 1-2 2-5  undiscounted amount at
At 1 April 2019 on demand years years cash flows 1 April 2019
RZZE-N%F
PRIE AURRAS mA—H
R-ZB-hEMA-A HEEK 1-24 2-5% MEAE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THAT FTHET THT
Trade and other payables FERT IR R E A e 5R0E 6,055 - - 6,055 6,055
Lease liabilities (note) MEaE T 8,078 3,182 = 11,260 10,849
14,133 3,182 - 17,315 16,904
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

30. B A5 R B B 1R )

Liquidity risk (continued) (o RBHESE@®
Carrying
Less than Total amount at
1 year or on =2 2-5  undiscounted 31 March
At 31 March 2019 demand years years cash flows 2019
RZF-—NE
PIE XMBERE =A=+—H
R-ZB-NE=R=1+—-H FEEKR 125 2-54 mERE )R E (3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET FTET THET FTET
Trade and other payables & S 5RI8 B At B A R0R 6,055 = = 6,055 6,055
6,055 = = 6,055 6,055
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Misk: REBEERALIETENEARER
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balance at 1 BB REEAFICRRARRS
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities related to leases which T-NFHA—RZ Y& - RER
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. HERMBEE B RAET7TR SR
Lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the date of RICEHEZTHERBZHERRE -
transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified HEABERERBEEZEBMBRE
as operating leases under HKAS 17 and amounts relating to A FIREARENBEE B G5
new leases entered into during the year. Under this approach, R FBITRDBERECEHEZHERN
the comparative information is not restated. See note 2(a). BRAZEBARRFANT L2 HHE
e o BEBEZFE  WEBIILK
B o RMTF2G) ©
Interest rate risk (d) F == bk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rate.

mAAREY EEANTAEE  £E
A REE RS R E AT RS
FEEDPE -
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31. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

3. GERETRERMF
(a) MEZHELHABZYURE

Lease
liabilities
HEEE
(note 23)
(B 5E23)
HK$'000
FABT
At 31 March 2019 NE=A=+—H =
Impact of initial application of HKFRS16 Fgﬁléf% MR EREAFIHRNTE 10,849
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWHA—H 10,849
Changes from cash flows: RenEED
Repayment of principal portion of the lease liabilities BEEHEEBEZEAIS (10,514)
Repayment of interest portion of the lease liabilities BEEHEEEZNEIS (694)
Total changes from financing cash flow: MERESRNELELZS (359)
Other non-cash movements: K fth 8
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFEA 694
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases EA$¢VI R ET T & mg N
during the year 11,371
Effect on modification of lease term B HERRZZE (186)
Total other non-cash movements HEMZEHRE 11,879
At 31 March 2020 R=ZF-_ZTF=H=+—H 11,520

(b) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had non-
cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$11,371,000 and HK$11,371,000, respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for land and buildings (2019: Nil).

e
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(b) EXFBREXRES
RBE-Z-FF=A=+—HL#F
B pEELwRET AEEEAE
AERHEABNFRETES A A
11,371,0007% 7T %11,371,000/8 T (= &
—hEF: )



32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMBHRNE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. EXERER
The Group's capital management objectives are to safeguard the REFBZERNEBEBRNRERAEBHIFES
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide - LARRREHEBSR R AEMFFEEEER
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to TR #EZEERNEBEURDEL KA
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital UEkEZH BEEEZBTEUERERZES -
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital REBEEGRLRERRNREEALEREE [
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements KEBAEBEZARESTE  UBRHER
of the Group, to ensure optimal shareholder returns. ERE DR o
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a debt-to- REBAERBELRIERETEERNELE -
equity ratio. For this purpose, net debt includes borrowing less cash HUEME FABEBREERRRERRTE
and bank balances while equity comprises share capital and reserves. g MERBERAREE -
The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of reporting period was as RERSHELEERNEERSELXNAT:
follows:
2020 2019
—E-E2F —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Net Debt FAEIE (7,750) (7,107)
Equity T 16,493 21,425
Debt to equity ratio BEERLLE (47 %) (33%)
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 33. REHERER

Since January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 has impacted on
the global business environment. Up to the date of these financial
statements, COVID-19 caused a worsen impact to the Group's
business. Pending the development and spread of COVID-19
subsequent to the date of these financial statements, further
changes in economic conditions for the Group arising thereof may
have further impact on the financial results of the Group. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and
react actively to its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

BE-Z=-ZF— A ' COVID- 19 & H 2 ER&
FIRIEBK T E - EHRCOVID-19R AR B 8
BHEERAE ASEMEHSER AL
SIBME— B ASENTHEEER
(B RARGBEHELFTAEYENE
B AEEBELEZZCOVID-19MEIBTERE -
JNAE R FE TG 1B N AR B B R R R

BEBNTZE -

=

=
R

AEEZERERAT 20192068k / 139




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B7 75 3 3% B 3

34. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34, RN T AR B E

THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—E-8F —T-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
bg=s FHE T FE T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARMIEE 2,700 44,717
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 2,700 44,717
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable H fth fE Yz 5k 1E 41 41
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE S 589 589
Total current assets MBEEEE 630 630
Total assets BEHE 3,330 45,347
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,330 45,347
Equity =
Share capital A% < 25 4,510 4,510
Reserves &1 26 (1,180) 40,837
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,330 45,347

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Hue Kwok Chiu (FFE £/)
Director & &

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (&F El )
Director & %
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RAMBHRNE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 35. B RIS
Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 are as AEBR-_TE-_TF=A=+—RHZHBAH
follows: FIEAT
Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital held by the Group Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BETR AEEBEEN and place of operation
8 At B R A BERA [ YN £ TTEBREXE MY
Top Triumph Global Limited BVI, 20 November 2013 Us$1 100% direct Investment holding
EBRAEE 17T 100% B # REER
“E-=F+-A=tH
Central United Global Limited BVI, 18 November 2010 UsS$100 100% indirect Investment holding
EBRAEE 100 7T 100% & # REER
“E-Z£+-ATNH
Elegant Chain Development BVI, 8 August 2008 Us$140 100% indirect Investment holding
Limited RERLES 140% 7T 100% & #% REZR
“ZZNENANR
Top Investor Global Limited BVI, 11 November 2014 Us$1 100% indirect Investment holding
EBRAEE 17T 100% & # REER
“Z-ME+-A+—-H
Central Sky Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 24 October 2003 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
PRERBR AR &% —EZ=F+A-1WA 1078 7T 100% & # Hong Kong
REBTERMEmM
E Lighting Group Limited Hong Kong, 4 January 2011 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
E# —E——F—-AmWmA 10,0007 7T 100% el # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERHERRKE
Element Lighting Design Limited ~ Hong Kong, 11 May 2005 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
RARFAERLDA 5% “ZZRFEAAT-A 10747t 100% 5 and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERHERRKE
Good Harvest Surplus Limited Hong Kong, 20 May 2011 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
ELRERATA E% —E——FHA=-1H 1T 100% il # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERHERRKE
—_—
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and date of

35.

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= B 3%

B B A ] 5 18

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

Name incorporation/establishment BETR AEEBEN and place of operation
L TEMAR S/ B 3L 4 B % B BRERA e £ TEXBREXLHY
RS Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 23 February 2009 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
E# —EENF-A-t=H 10,0007 7T 100% il # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERMHERNKA
228 Inc Limited Hong Kong, 6 November 2013 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
5% —F-=F+—-AAXAH 10,0007 7T 100% il # Hong Kong
REBTERMEM
Culture Art Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
XEFRAA EF “Z-NETARE 1T 100% [ and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERMERNKA
Major Will Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
EF “Z-NETARE 1T 100% [ and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERMHERNKA
ELG Operations Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Sourcing of lighting products
SRASELEFRAA EF “ZT-NETATHEA 1T 100% [ and household furniture
REEHERRRE
ELG Management Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Provision of management
ERASEERERAA EF “ZT-NETATHEA 1T 100% [ services
R$EE RS
Urban Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
E% “T-WE+—A=t<B 1#x 100% il # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERMERNKA
Lighting Connected Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B —2-WE+—AZT"B 1T 100% [ and household furniture in

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (continueay ~ 35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Place and date of

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

RAMBHRNE

Fft BB A B 5F 18 0

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

Name incorporation/establishment BEIR AEEBEEN and place of operation
A1 MBI B R A BRERAE FE 16 R A 7 &2 TEXBREXLH
Real Luck Limited Hong Kong, 1 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
E#F —E-NE+=A—-A 18T 100% i # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBZERBERNIFTA
Trendmall Group Limited Hong Kong, 2 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Wholesale of tableware
E#F —E-NE+=-A=AH 18T 100% i # and its related products
worldwide
RERERTEHEER
REBE R
Trendmall Gallery Limited Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of tableware and
W EEREERAR E% —T-NE+=A+ERA 18T 100% i # giftware in Hong Kong
REERZEEARER
Trendmall International Limited Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect International trade
EF “Z-NETZATHE 17T 100% el # BKZE5

Note:
the year.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 24 June 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

36.

Wi WBARRERD SR TEAEEES -

MESS B ®RR

REMBHRRER
N

ZoEFERNATHAEE

=

RRAREEG A E WK -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B S

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1t—-HILEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EFE —E-NF ZE-N\F ZE—ttF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT FHETT FHETT FHETT
OPERATING RESULTS ReExE
Revenue ] 69,515 78,765 81,725 83,237 106,488
Cost of sales $HE R A (32,752) (36,399) (41,647) (38,773) (57,089)
Gross profit EF 36,763 42,366 40,078 44,464 49,399
Other income and gain Ho e A R I 28 (1,316) (21,538) (17,125) (1,516) 19,330
Selling and distribution HERDHAX
expenses (25,925) (28,863) (33,584) (36,848) (41,332)
Administrative and other TR EEMES
expenses (13,790) (16,650) (17,028) (18,546) (21,576)
Finance costs 81 7% Ak AR (694) = = @) (10)
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRBAER(EE) (4,962) (24,685) (27,659) (12,450) 5,811
Income tax credit/(expense)  FiSEE 2,/ (Fx%) 30 438 246 9 (154)
Profit/(Loss) and total AAGEEAEN
comprehensive income FREAN/(FB)
for the year attributable kR2EKRAHE
to the owners of the
Company (4,932) (24,247) (27,413) (12,441) 5,657
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EC-EFE —E-—NF —E-N\F —E—LF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT FAT FAT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREARE
Total assets EEHE 35,609 29,069 53,561 84,402 95,765
Total liabilities BfERAE (19,116) (7,644) (7,778) (11,206) (17,010
Net assets EEFRE 16,493 21,425 45,783 73,196 78,755
Equity Ry k] 16,493 21,425 45,783 73,196 78,755
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